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LIETUVOS ELEKTRINE AB

ANNUAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

PUBLIC COMPANY LIETUVOS ELEKTRINE

ANNUAL REPORT 2006

The Annual Report of AB Lietuvos elektriné (hereinafter — Company) was
prepared by the Board of the Company in accordance with Article 34 of the Law on
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania. The Company’s Annual Report is public. Every
interested person may have access to it at the Company’s registered office at 21 Elektrinés
St., Elektrénai.

During the reporting period the Company’s Board comprised the following members:
Pranas Noreika — Chairman of the Board, Director General of the Company;

Vida Dzermeikiené — Head of Electricity and Heat Division of the Energy Department, Ministry
of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania;

Domininkas Peciulis — Head of State Property Privatization and Management Division, Ministry
of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania;

Dr. Arvydas Galinis — senior research specialist of the Lithuanian Energy Institute;
Rolandas Jankauskas — Chief Financier of the Company.

During the year, the Board held 12 meetings, at which the Company’s financial
plans, investment projects and their implementation, quarterly results of economic activities,
income and expenditure estimates and a great many of other issues within the competence of the
Board were discussed. In this Annual Report the Company’s Board presents the Company’s
shareholders, creditors and all other interested persons a review of the Company’s activities in
the financial year 2006, highlights of the financial year, the Company’s plans and all other
relevant information to be disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report as prescribed by law.

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD IN 2006

March:

e The Board approved the Corporate Action Plan for 2006.
e The Board approved the Investment Plan for 2006.

April:

e The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company’s shareholders approved the
Annual Report 2005 and the financial statements for the year 2005, including the Balance
Sheet, the Income Statement, and the Statement on Changes in Equity. The AGM
approved the profit appropriation.
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July:
e The new price was approved for the thermal energy produced by the Lithuanian Power
Plant at 6.87 ct/kWh.

September:

e Adjustments were made to the Corporate Action Plan for the year 2006.
e The Board approved the relatively fixed costs and the remuneration fund for the year
2007.

October:

e The National Control Commission for Prices and Energy set the purchase price of
electricity produced by AB Lietuvos elektring¢, where electricity production is necessary
to ensure the energy reserves of the system, for the year 2007 at 19.00 ct/kWh, excluding
VAT.

November:

e Mr. Pranas Noreika was elected Chairman of the Board of the public company (AB)
Lietuvos elektriné.

December:

® An agreement for gas supply, transmission and distribution in the year 2007 was signed
with AB Lietuvos dujos.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1. The Company’s Performance in 2006

In 2006, AB Lietuvos elektriné supplied 885,062 thousand kWh of busbar energy.
Furthermore, AB Lietuvos elektriné sold thermal energy in the amount of 148,904 Gcal to the

town of Elektrénai and the Kietaviskés greenhouses “Gausa”.

Balance of energy and fuel costs

Table 1
Indicators Unit of : 200 :
measurement Production of  |Production of thermal
electricity energy
1. Electricity produced in kind thou kWh 986 245 X
Of'it Gcal X 169 949
- in gas boiler houses Gcal X 3095
- in electric-boiler houses Geal X 0
2. Power energy used thou kWh 69 287 1 082
in the production of electricity % 7.02 X
kWh/Gcal X 6.37
3. Additional production thou kWh 30 814 X
Of it to: Geal X 21045
3.1. feed the thermal network thou kWh 633 X
Gcal X 8 365
3.2. maintain circulation of the thermal network thou kWh 3174 X
3.3. maintain state reserve fuel in stock thou kWh 1184 X
Geal X 1122
3.4. maintain plant reserve fuel in stock thou kWh 0 X
Gcal X 649
3.5. accept for storage fuel from other thou kWh 279 X
companies Gcal X 308
3.6. support other needs of the plant thou kWh 25 544 X
Gcal X 10 601
4. Energy sold thou kWh/Gcal 885 062 148 904
4.1. from busbar and collectors thou kWh 885 062 X
Ofit : Gcal X 145 809
4.1.1. quota electricity thou kWh 623 322 X
4.1.2. contractual " 0 X
4.1.3. additional " 136 712 X
4.1.4. regulating (balance) " -1377 X
4.1.5. balancing (balance) " 125 341 X
4.1.6. sold from the transformers for the "
Company’s own needs 1064 x
4.2. of it to the Kietaviskés greenhouses Gcal X 76 003
4.3. Additionally supplied from boiler houses " X 3095
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4.4. Losses in thermal networks " X 0
4.5. Thermal energy supplied to consumers: " X 148 903
- the town of Elektrénai " X 66 344
- all residents " X 0
of it for hot water " X 0
- companies and organisations " X 6 458
- greenhouses " X 76 132
5. Contractual fuel used: Contractual fuel, t 350 885 25219

2. Performance in carrying out the Corporate Action Plan for 2006

With prices for natural gas going up and those for electricity down, Lithuanian Power
Plant had a total loss of LTL 39,398m in core activities. Furthermore, the power plant failed to
receive the expected proceeds for the capacity reserve in the amount of LTL 20m. during the
period of repair works in Ignalina Nuclear Power Plant. Having sold tradable permits to CO,
emissions, however, the Company earned a profit before taxes in the amount of LTL 31.174m.
The planned profit was LTL 22.132m.
The Lithuanian Power Plant gained a profit in LTL 70.942m from ancillary activities,
mainly, from the sale of tradable permits to CO, emissions.

Performance in 2006 compared to planned indicators

Table 2
Item . Unit of Planned in
No. Indicators measurement 2006 Result
I. TECHNICAL INDICATORS
1. Electricity supplied to: thou kWh 850 000 885 062
1.1. AB Lietuvos energija - 190 000 884 039
1.1.1. |Of it under PSO quota - 660 000 516 361
1.2. Other consumers ‘- - 1023
2. Capacity sold: MW*h
2.1. Warm capacity reserve - 876 000 565219
2.2. Cold capacity reserve - 8 698 680 6 538 789
3. Thermal energy sold Gcal 140 000 183 358
4. Fuel costs in production of contractual electricity g/kWh 398.1 396.5
5. Fuel costs in production of contractual thermal ke/Geal 165.7 169.7
energy
I1. REVENUES (total): LTL thou 258 394 264 628
1. Electricity sold - 109 879 119 796
2. Cold capacity reserve - 53939 53939
3. Warm capacity reserve - 7972 7972
4. Thermal energy - 10 123 9056
S. Revenues from ancillary activities - 76 482 73 324
6 Revenues from financial investment activities - 0 542
I11. COSTS (total): LTL thou 236 261 233 454
Variable - 139 128 140 352
For electricity - 128 936 131393
For thermal energy - 10 192 8 959
Relatively fixed - 97 134 89 808
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2.1. Amortization - 30 890 25619
2.2. Wages and salaries - 18 998 18 999
2.3. Social insurance - 6 080 6122
2.4. Taxes - 4278 2 587
2.5. Material costs - 36 088 36 482
3. Other activities - 0 2382
4 Financial investment activities - 800 912

IV. PROFIT (total): LTL thou 22132 31174
1. From core activities - 22 132 -39 398
2. From other activities - - 70 942
3. From financial investment activities - - -370
3. Prices for electricity and capacity reserves in 2006

Table 3
Ordered amount Price

1. |Warm capacity reserve MW 100 MW 9.10 LTL/MW*h|
. |Cold capacity reserve ordered " 993 MW 8.50 LTL/MW*h
3. |PSO "- 660m kWh 13.77 ent/kWh
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STAFF

In 2006, the average number of AB Lietuvos elektriné employees under the payroll statistical
report:

Table 4
Result
2005 2006

Total number of employees 744 706
Of them:
- employees in core operations 687 666
- employees in ancillary operations 57 40
Staff structure by nature of work:
- specialists 206 197
- workers 538 509
Average wages and salaries, LTL 2137 2592
- specialists 2 638 3118
- workers 1939 2382
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Emissions of the power plant into the atmosphere in 2006

Table 5

Pollutants

Current emissions, tonnes:

Flue gas emissions into the atmosphere:

SO, 1,131.481
INOy 815.049
CcO 102.311
Solid particles from crude oil and orimusion 4.556
including V,0s 2.335
3. Hydrocarbon vapour, t: 0.276
2.1. Emissions into the atmosphere from small sources, t:
INOy 0.023
CcO 0.065
Solid particles 0.034
[ron compounds 0.048
Manganese compounds 0.007
Sulphuric anhydride 0.026
[Volatile organic compounds 0.016
Sulphuric acid 0.003
Emissions to the river of Stréva:
BOD7, t 0.805
Sinking substances, t 2.401
Oil substances, kg 0.072
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Report on greenhouse gas emissions by the Lithuanian Power Plant in 2006

Table 6
[Amounts of greenhouse gas emissions by Annex I activities (EC decision of 29/01/2004)
IPPC code| Approach | Uncertainty Tiers Emissions
Categories IPCC of EPER used? (Measurement| changed? CO2 ’
CRF-Category Category | Calculation/ | approach) Yes/No
Measurement
)A. Fuel Combustion
Activities
1 ||+ Encrey industrics I1. | Calculation - No 638,523
a. Public Electricity and o ’
Heat Production

10
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INVESTMENT

Implementation of the Investment Plan Projects in 2006

1. Modernization of regenerative air heaters in units 5, 6, 7 and 8.

All air heaters in Unit 5 — ROP-5A, 5B, 5C, 5D — were modernized. Sealing
improvements of rotary type air pre-heaters ROP-6A and ROP-6B in Unit 6 were completed
while upgrading of rotors ROP-6C and ROP-6D was performed by about 80 %.

Modernization of regenerative air pre-heaters in Units 6, 7 and 8 will continue throughout
2007.

2. Upgrading of control systems in Units 5, 7 and 8.

A control system was mounted in Unit 5. Sensors T, P, F, L, Q were replaced and
automated security control program launched. Automatic operation of the power plant process
during start-up procedures was introduced to allow automatic start-ups at all regimes.

Automatic regulation regime was set for operation at minimum and maximum capacity
when firing gas. The following work still remains to be completed: tuning of coordinated unit
operation mode (turbine control loads MW — boiler — steam pressure before the turbine),
acceptance tests corresponding to the UCPTE standards and the optimization of operation of
temperature corrections.

The work on upgrading of control systems in Units 7 and 8 will continue in 2007.

3. Installation of low NOx burners for boilers in Units 1, 2, 5, 6, 7 and 8.

Hot air blowers and low NOx burners as well as anti-explosive safety systems were
installed in boilers 5A and 5B in Unit 5. Their tests were carried out firing natural gas. The
measuring of the NOx emissions revealed good results.

Reconstruction of boilers 6A and 6B in Unit 6 is going on. The foundation was made for
new hot air blowers; a new flue gas recirculation system is under construction. Work on Units 1,
6, 7 and 8 will be carried on throughout the year 2007.

4. Assembly of flue gas desulphurisation plant and FDG absorbers in Unit 7 and
Boiler 8A.

The following sections have already been assembled: heating pipelines leading to the
industrial area (Pramone) and the greenhouses, a gas pipe, the foundation for electrostatic
precipitators (ESP) in 7A and 7B, supporting structures, hoppers, ESP casings, inlet and outlet
ducts, inlet and outlet distribution plates, the ESP-8A foundation, supporting structures, hoppers,
the foundation for a gypsum storage building and tanks for the limestone silo, limestone pulp,
gypsum pulp, the filtrate, the foundation for the neutralization plant.

Collecting and discharge electrodes in ESP-7A and 7B are under erection; work on ESP-
8A casing, insulation and cladding is in progress; the foundation for the gypsum sludge
dewatering building is also under construction. Repair works on neutralization tanks have been
completed and the tanks relocated. Pipelines to the neutralization plant and to the ash pond are
being assembled. The building of underground communications is close to completion. Work on
detailed design is continued. A bypass road has been built; it will be paved with asphalt. Work in
Unit 7 and Boiler 8A will be continued in 2007.

5. Building of a new 2000 m’ water collection tank.

11
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The building of a 2000 m® water collection tank was completed.

6. Renovation of a 1.2 km railway track and roads 101 and 108.
Renovation of a 1. 2 km railway track as well as of Roads 101 and 108 was completed.

Investment absorbtion in 2006

Table 7, LTL thou

Source of funding

Internation
No Project Plan for |Implementat National | al Ignalina
2006 ion in 2006 Own funds| Loans Ignalln.a ) decon.lmlss1
decommissi| oning
oning fund | support
fund
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Flue gas desulphurisation plants
L1 (electrostatic precipitators) in Boiler 8B 2800000 481198 481198
1.2. [Renovation of the railway runway 721000 680750 680750
— 3
1.3, [Building of a new 2000 m” water 398000 398140 398140
collection tank
1.4. |FDG absorbers in Unit 7 and boiler 8A | 111559000 66033215 11552778 86747738
.5, [nstallation of burners of low nitrogen | 416100001 24419919 20433707 2456527
oxide output and booster fans
1.6. |Upgrading of regenerative air preheaters| 20639000 12924754 1847305 5250184
1.7, |Upgrading of the control system in 28695000{ 8727643 6890753
Units 5, 7 and 8
1.8, |Project management (quality assurance | 405000 2968844 2254262 1484225
and eco management)
1.9. |Refurbishment of the main building 100000
1.10. Upgrading of computer and local 100000
network equipment
1.11. [Equipment not requiring installation 1500000 1078206 1078206
1.12. [Replacement of a turbo supply pump 50000
Preparation of an ash pond for
L13. depositing desulpharisation products 400000
114, Replacement of hlgh pressure preheater 100000
valves by more reliable ones
1.15. |Staff training 2500000
Assembly of new cooling equipment in
1.16. Units 7 and 8 400000
117, Replacement of CIS and HIS control 300000
valves
118, Replacement of EMC and TMS 30000
recirculation valves
Replacement of direct current panel for
119, Central Accumulator Battery 100000
Total: 215937004 117712669 2638294 31426027 19259489 88231963

12
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THE COMPANY’S PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2007

The Company’s main plans for the year 2007 are reflected in Tables 8 and 9.

Prices for electricity and capacity reserves in 2007

Table 8

Price
) ‘Warm capacity reserve 100 MW 9.10 LTL/MW*h
2. Cold capacity reserve ordered 993 MW 8.50 LTL/MW*h
3. PSO quota planned 700m kWh 19.0 cnt/kWh

The Corporate Action Plan of AB Lietuvos elektriné for the year 2007 was approved,
projecting revenues in the amount of LTL 247,814 thousand, costs in the amount of LTL 225,691
thousand (of them LTL 83,524 thousand of relatively fixed costs, including LTL 21,848 thousand
allocated for wages and salaries) and LTL 22,123 thousand in profit.

Main indicators as planned for 2007

Table 9
No. Indicators mezlllsnullt'eolflen Achieved in 2006 Plagg;(; for
t
1. Total relatively fixed costs: LTL m 89.808 83.524
Of them:

1.1. |Material costs: 36.482 23.700
1.1.1. |Repair works by contracts - 14.164 8.000)
1.1.2. Maintenance costs - 15.074 12.000
1.1.3. |Other material costs - 7.244 3.700
1.2. |Depreciation and amortisation - 25.619 27.619
1.3. |[Wages and salaries -"- 18.999 21.848
1.4. |Social insurance -"- 6.122 6.992
1.5. |Taxes - 2.586 2.565
1.5.1. |Real estate tax - 0.544 0.544
1.5.2. |Land lease tax - 0.756| 0.756]
1.5.3. | Environment tax -"- 0.190 0.190
1.5.4. | Pollution tax - 0.967 0.967
1.5.5. | Payment into the Guarantee Fund - 0.044 0.044
1.5.6. | Other taxes (VAT, Stamp duty) - 0.086| 0.064
1.6. |Interest -"- - 0.800
2. Fuel costs -"- 140.4 142.2
2.1. |Fuel for production of electricity - 131.4 128.8

13
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2.2.  |Fuel for production of thermal energy " 9.0 13.4
3. Total costs of core activities -" 230.2 225.7
3.1.  |Other operating costs LTL m 24 0.0
3.2. |Costs of financial investment activities "- 0.9 0.0
4. Total costs =" 233.5 225.7
5. Cold capacity reserve ordered MW 993 993
6. Warm capacity reserve "- 100 100
7. Capacity used " 101.0 79.9
8. Electricity sold KWhm 885.1 700.0
8.1. |Of it under PSO quota "- 660.0 700.0
0. farl;c;df;ru;::(lld capacity reserve and for the LTL/MWh 2,50 2,50
10.  [Price for warm capacity reserve - 9.10 9.10
11.  |Price for electricity ct/kWh 13.54 19.00
11.1. |Of it under PSO quota ct/kWh 13.77 19.00
12. |Revenues from reserves and capacity used| LTL m 67.5 87.9
12.1. |Of them for: cold capacity reserve " 53.9 73.9
12.2. Warm capacity reserve " 8.0 8.0
s, Gy solemed ot
13.  |Thermal energy sold MWh 173175 190732
14.  |Price for thermal energy ct/kWh 5.23 6.87
15. |Revenues for thermal energy LTL m 9.06 13.1
16. E:ew:;e)nues for electricity (less capacity LTL m 1142 127.1
17. |Total revenues from core activities " 190.8 228.0
18. |Profit (loss) from core activities " -394 2.3
18.1. |Other operating revenues LTL m 73.3 19.8

Of them sales of tradable permits to CO;

emissions that ensure profitability of the 71.2 19.8

Company
18.2. [Revenue from financial investment activities "- 0.5 0.0
19. (Total revenues =" 264.6 247.8
20. |Profit before taxes =" 31.2 22.1

14
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Planned emissions into the atmosphere in 2007, tonnes:

Table 10
Pollutants 2007 1% quarter qufll;dter qu:::iter qu:t:ter

1. Planned emissions of flue gases,
tonnes:
SO, 4505.96 1618.059] 780.159| 847.191| 1260.56
NO, 1355.280 194.516| 263.851| 483.471| 413.442
CO 240.98 5540 44.092 65.090 76.393
Ashes of crude oil and orimulsion 6.98 2.024 1.187 1.47 2.303

including V,0s 3.34 0969  0.568] 0701  1.102
fvlgé‘;ﬁzse?gmarbon vapor 0.308 0.0616  0.077  0.1078  0.0616
3. Planned emissions from small
sources of pollution, t:
NO, 0.023 0.00575| 0.00575] 0.00575] 0.00575
CO 0.065 0.01625| 0.01625] 0.01625] 0.01625
Solid particles 0.034 0.0085 0.0085 0.0085 0.0085
[ron compounds 0.048 0.012 0.012 0.012 0.012
Manganese compounds 0.0066 0.00165| 0.00165| 0.00165] 0.00165
Sulphuric anhydride 0.026 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065 0.0065
Sulphuric acid 0.003 0.00075| 0.00075| 0.00075] 0.00075
VOC 0.02 0.004 0.004 0.004 0.004
4. Emissions, g/kWh, will consist of: 2005 2007
SO, 2.650 2.220
INO, 1.580 0.668
CO 0.710 0.119
Ashes of crude oil and orimulsion 0.012 0.003

including V,0s 0.005 0.002

Ash in boilers K-2 and K-8 will be precipitated in an electrostatic filter, granulated, packed into
hermetic plastic bags and sent abroad for recycling.

15
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Description of investments in AB Lietuvos elektriné in 2007 - 2009

1. Assembly of a natural gas fired combined cycle turbo generator of 350+450 MW
capacity in the Lithuanian Power Plant.

Acting in accordance with Paragraph 8 of Article 2 of Protocol No 4 of the Accession
Treaty of the Republic of Lithuania and under provisions of the National Energy Strategy, after
the closure of the Ignalina Nuclear Power Plant as of 31 December 2009, the Lithuanian Power
Plant will be the main producer of electricity in Lithuania. In order to ensure a secure supply of
electricity, a unit of a combined cycle of about 400 MW has to be assembled at the power plant.

In the event a unit of a combined cycle is not assembled at the plant, in 2010 we can anticipate a
shortage of capacity and a deficit of electricity in about 840 GWh.

Lithuania’s chances to join the electricity market of Western Europe before 2010 are very
limited due to technical problems. Currently the electricity trade market can only include the
market of the CIS countries. However, the electricity import from Russia is also limited due to
the transmission capacity of electric lines. Thus, Lithuania’s possibilities to import power in 2010
are vague. The country will have to satisfy the demand for electricity producing it in local power
plants.

In order to ensure a reliable supply of electricity at lowest prices possible, a most feasible
solution is to modernize the Lithuanian power plant by building a unit of a combined cycle of
about 400 MW.

Building this unit at the Lithuanian power plant would require less investment compared
to building a new power plant in another location, because it would be possible to use the current
facilities. Fuel costs for one KWh of energy would reduce by 30 %, compared to the costs of
production in a 150 MW unit.

As a combined cycle technology allows reducing fuel costs by 30 %, environment
pollution also reduces.

2. Replacement of 300 MW turbo generator TVV-320-2 in Unit 5

The turbo generator TVV-320-2 in Unit 5 (production No. 15974) was manufactured in
1966 and launched in 1967. The turbo generator has worked for 170 000 hours generating 38 000
000 000 kWh of electricity.

The turbo generator was repaired 9 times. In 1987, repair works after a failure in the turbo
generator revealed multiple heating spots in the reactive metal, therefore replacement of the turbo
generator was to take place before 1994. Due to the changed political situation it was impossible
to obtain a new turbo generator before 1994 and the turbo generator was not replaced.

In 2003, AB Lietuvos elektriné ordered a defect check in the turbo generator. The check
was carried out by specialists from the factory “Elektrosila”. The specialists concluded that the
turbo generator had passed its operation life limit (the reactive metal in the turbo generator is far
from satistfactory, the stator insulation system had passed its warranty life) and cannot ensure
safe operation. No further repair work can improve the general status of the turbo generator,
therefore it was recommended to replace the turbo generator by a new one.

16
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3. Replacement of the electric feed pump in Unit 7.

The pump was assembled in 1971. It was manufactured at Leningrad Metal Factory
which ceased pump production as far back as 1985. Currently no spare parts are produced for this
type of pumps, furthermore, its hydraulic muff does not meet the modern requirements of the
pump capacity control.

4. Upgrading of high pressure air preheaters in Unit 5.

High pressure air preheaters were manufactured in 1966. They have already reached their
operation life limit. During the technical diagnostic check in 2006, when a hydraulic test was
carried out in the spiral tube system, a number of cracks formed in the spriral tubes. The analysis
of the cracks revealed that the tube walls of the spiral system had thinned to a critical level.

5. Replacement of an ejector pump SA.

Due to insufficient water pressure in the inlet region of the ejector pump, an increased
cavitation of inner surfaces takes place. Having dismantled the pump, we discovered washed
metal particles from the working wheel and the casing of the pump. A new pump is necessary
with a cavitation reserve of more than 3.6 metre water column.

6. Assembly of flue gas desulphurisation plants and absorbers.

Work on the assembly of these facilities in Unit 7 and Boiler 8 A will continue in 2007 -
2008.

7. Installation of Low-NOx burners and booster fans.
It is an on-going project in Units 1, 2, 6, 7 and 8 for the period of 2007 — 2009.
8. Upgrading of the control systems in Units 5, 7 and 8.

Upgrading of the control systems in Units 5, 7 and 8 is projected to continue in the period
0f 2007 —2009.

9. Upgrading of regenerative air preheaters.

Work on upgrading of regenerative air pre-heaters will be continued in Units 6, 7 and 8 in
the period of 2007 — 2008.

10. Project management (quality assurance and eco management)

The services will be further provided in the period of 2007 — 2009.

17
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Plan of Investments for the Year 2007

Table 11
LTL thou
Source of funding
. Ignalina
. . Ignalina |. .
No. Project title 2007 2008 2009 Own national international
. .|decommission| TOTAL
resources | decommissi 1ng SllppOI't
oning fund fund
I. On-going projects
Assembly of flue gas
1.1. |desulphurisation plant and|160137284| 57989346 0 0 29800000 188326630| 218126630
dust precipitators
Installation of burners of
1.2. [low nitrogen oxide output | 40217904| 10967393 26959462 75794759 2350000 0 78144759
and booster fans
Upgrading of the control
1.3. |systems in Units 5, 7 and | 15593880 10373178| 6572128 32539186 0 0 32539186
8
1.4, [Upgrading of regenerative| (3933071 4791084 0| 20684391 0 0 20684391
air preheaters
Project management
1.5. |(quality assurance and 3288543 3561560] 1641648 3396700 0 5095050,6 8491751
eco management)
1.6, [Fquipment notrequiring | 5500001 1500000{ 1500000] 4500000 0 0| 4500000
installation
I1. New projects
.1, [Replacement of an ejector| 43544 0 0 430000 0 0o 430000
pump S5A
2. [Upgrading of high 2600000 0 0| 2600000 0 0| 2600000
pressure pre-heaters
) 3, [Replacement of an 1900000 0 o 1900000 0 of 1900000
electric feed pump
Construction of a 400MW
2.4. |combined-cycle gas 86320000| 345280000(345280000{233064000 0 543816000| 776880000,
turbine
.5, [Replacement of a 300MW 0 0| 36000000 36000000 0 0| 36000000
generator
Total I and II: 328380918 433962561/417953238/410909036] 32150000 737237681/ 1180296717,
Chairman of the Board Pranas Noreika
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BALANCE SHEET, 2006

(Reporting period)

31 December 2006

LTL

ITEMS Notes | 31 December 2006 31 December 2005
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Non-current tangible assets 5 1,183,942,084 1,054,419,403
Intangible assets 6 102,819,624 216,091,452
Non-current accounts receivable 7 1,248,458 1,344,296
Deferred taxes 27 241,188 206,820
Total non-current assets 1,288,251,353 1,272,061,970
Current assets:
Inventories 8 34,522,218 33,353,748
Accounts receivable and prepayments 9 26,749,743 20,945,566
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 61,383,567 14,092,527
Total current assets 122,655,528 68,391,841
TOTAL ASSETS 1,410,906,882 1,340,453,811
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity:
Share capital 11 145,800,689 145,800,689
Revaluation reserve 12 678,996,602 692,623,615
Legal reserve 12 8,363,997 7,502,505
Other reserves 12 57,736,702 54,091,852
Revaluation reserve of unused CO2 emission rights 13 - 98,822,418
Retained earnings 14 55,592,163 26,447,779
Total equity 946,490,152 1,025,288,857
Grants and subsidies 15 206,953,596 107,708,465
Non-current liabilities:
Bank loans 16 47,923,096 12,999,792
Financial leasing 17 6,696 45,979
Deferred profit tax 27 122,295,619 125,499,659
Total non-current liabilities 170,225,411 138,545,430
Current liabilities:
Trade and other debts payable 18 37,641,277 13,427,080
Labour related liabilities 19 1,937,662 1,712,780
Current year profit tax 4,191,198 1,533,614
Pollution quota liabilities 13 43,428,302 52,199,792
Financial lease liabilities 17 39,283 37,794
Total current assets 87,237,723 68,911,060
TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 1,410,906,882 1,340,453,811

Director General
Pranas Noreika

Chief Accountant
Rolandas Jankauskas

(signature)

(signature)
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INCOME STATEMENT,

(Reporting period)

31 December 2006

2006

LTL

ITEMS Notes | 31 December 2006 | 31 December 2005
INCOME FROM SALES 20, 22 190,762,359 202,958,526
COSTS OF SALES 21, 22 (216,944,735) (175,070,921)
GROSS PROFIT (LOSS) (26,182,376) 27,887,604
Operating costs 23 (13,215,580) (13,117,755)
Other operating income 24 73,324,327 2,309,867
Other operating costs 24 (2,382,353) (2,061,449)
Interest income 541,731 499,803
Operating profit (loss) 32,085,749 15,518,070
Financing costs 25 (461,719) (921,192)
Effect of change in the currency exchange rate (450,430) 5,950,087
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES 31,173,600 20,546,965
Profit tax expenses (gain) 26 (6,166,379) (3,317,123)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) 25,007,221 17,229,842
Profit (loss) per share 28 0.17 0.12

Director General
Pranas Noreika

Chief Accountant
Rolandas Jankauskas

(signature)

(signature)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY, 2006
(Reporting period)

31 December 2006

LTL
. Revaluation Revaluation
Paid up reserve of non- reserve of Retained
authorised . Legal reserve| Other reserves . TOTAL
capital current tangible uqu_sed goz earnings
assets emision rights
At 31 December 2004 145,800,689 707,383,281 6,910,546 49,135,664 - 5,651,728 914,881,909
Net profit - - - - - 17,229,843 17,229,843
Dividends paid - - - - - (4,735,674) (4,735,674)
Reserves used - - - (1,555,364) - 1,555,364 -
Transfer to legal reserve - - 591,959 - - (591,959) -
Transfer to other reserves - - - 6,511,552 - (6,511,552) -
Decrease in the revaluation reserve due to depreciation or writing
off of the revalued assets - (13,850,028) - - - 13,850,028 -
Increase of deferred tax liability due to the change of income tax
rate - (909,639) - - - - (909,639)
Revaluation of emssion rights - - - - 98,822,418 - 98,822,418
At 31 December 2005 145,800,689 692,623,615 7,502,505 54,091,852 98,822,418 26,447,779 1,025,288,857
Net profit - - - - - 25,007,221 25,007,221
Dividends paid - - - - - (4,983,508) (4,983,508)
Reserves used - - - (2,968,920) - 2,968,920 -
Transfer to legal reserve - - 861,492 - - (861,492)
Transfer to other reserves - - - 6,613,770 - (6,613,770) -
Decrease in the revaluation reserve due to depreciation and
writing off of the revalued assets - (13,627,013) - - - 13,627,013 -
Decrease in revaluation reserve of unused CO2 emission rights - - - - (98,822,418) - (98,822,418)
At 31 December 2006 145,800,689 678,996,602 8,363,997 57,736,702 - 55,592,163 946,490,152

Director General
Pranas Noreika

(signature)

Chief Accountant
Rolandas Jankauskas

(signature)
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CASH FLOWS STATEMENT, 2006
(Reporting period)

31 December 2006

LTL

ITEMS 31 December 2006 |31 December 2005
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers 293,855,752 245,725,507
Other income 46,496 90,986
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (242,338,224) (188,527,676)
Other payments (2,739,942) (14,332,482)
Cash generated from operations 48,824,082 42,956,336
Income tax paid (1,304,168) (3,989,080)
Interest paid (102,181) (580,854)
Net cash from operating activities 47,417,734 38,386,402

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of plant, property and equipment

(51,540,762)

(48,831,710)

Proceeds from disposal of plant, property and equipment 2,203

Repayment of loans granted 95,838 69,525
Interest received 541,731 499,803
Term deposits - 21,000,000
Net cash used in investing activities (50,900,989) (27,262,382)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings 34,923,304 -
Repayment of borrowings (37,794) (14,707,745)
Dividends paid (3,370,602) (4,703,787)
Grants recieved 19,259,387 19,971,000
Net cash from financing activities 50,774,295 559,468
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - 126,107
equivalents 47,291,039 11,809,594
OF THE

YEAR 14,092,527 2,282,933
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE

YEAR 61,383,567 14,092,528

General Director
Pranas Noreika

Chief Accountant
Rolandas Jankauskas

(signature)

(signature)
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1. General information

Acting in accordance with the Law on Reorganization of the Public Special-Purpose Company
“Lietuvos Energija” No VIII - 1693 of 18 May 2000, “Lietuvos Energija” underwent reorganization by way of
company splitting, i.e. a portion of assets, rights and obligations was separated from “Lietuvos Energija” and
new companies were established on that basis, including public company “Lietuvos elektriné”, public
company “Mazeikiy Elektriné”, public company “Ryty Skirstomieji Tinklai” and public company “Vakary
Skirstomieji Tinklai”.

The public company “Lietuvos elektriné” was registered with the Ministry of Economy on 31 December 2001
in accordance with the Law on Register of Enterprises of the Republic of Lithuania:

Company registration No. - BI 01-249;

Company code - 110870933;

VAT payer’s code — 108709314;

Policyholder registration in the Social Insurance Fund-No. 853488;

Registered office: Elektrinés St. 21, Elektrénai, Republic of Lithuania;

The authorized capital of the Company is LTL 145,800,689;

The company aims to ensure reliable and efficient supply, transmission and distribution of
electricity and thermal energy of high quality.

The prices of the power energy supplied by the Company are regulated by the State Price and Energy
Control Commission. For 2006 the Commission established the purchase price for the electric energy
generated by the Company in which the production of electric energy is required to ensure the reserves of
the energy system at 13.77 ct/kWh (excl. VAT).

The financial year of the Company is the calendar year. The anticipated duration of the commercial -
economic activity is unlimited.

The Company is a member of the Lithuanian Electricity Association and an active participant in the activities
of the Association representing the common interest of the European electricity sector (EUROELECTRIC).

As of 31 December the Company had 688 employees (on 31 December 2005 - 728 employees).

The financial statements presented have been drawn up in the national Lithuanian currency - litas (LTL).
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2. Application of new and revised IASs

During the accounting period the Company introduced all new and revised Standards and Interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Reporting
interpretations Committee of the International Accounting Standards Board (IFRIC) that are related to the
operations of the Company and were made effective starting with the accounting period that started on 1
January 2005. The adoption of the new and the revised Standards and Interpretations had no significant
effect upon the change in the accounting policy of the Company.

At the date of the authorization of these financial statements the following Standards and Interpretations

were issued but not yet effective.

New Standard, Interpretation, Revision

Approval date

Valid for accounting
period beginning on or
after

IAS 39 revised 2004 1 January 2006

- Cash flow hedge of forecast intra-group transactions

- Financial Guarantee Contracts (IFRS 4 amended
accordingly )

- Fair value option

Amendments to IAS 1 to add capital disclosures 2005 1 January 2007

IAS 19 Employee Benefits 2004 1 January 2006

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: amendments for the financial | 2005 1 January 2006
guarantee contracts

IFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of mineral Resources | 2004 1 January 2006
(IFRS 1 amended accordingly)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure (supersedes 30 2005 1 January 2007
IAS)

IFRIC 4 - Determining whether an Arrangement Contains 2004 1 January 2006
a Lease

IFRIC 5 - Rights to Interests Arising from 2004 1 January 2006
Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Funds

IFRIC 6 - Liabilities Arising from Participating in a Specific | 2005 1 January 2005
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 -Appling the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 | 2005 1 March 2006
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 8 — Scope of IFRS 2 2006 1 May 2006

IFRIC 9 - Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 2006 1 June 2006

The management of the Company believes that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in
future period will have no material impact upon the financial statements of the Company.
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3. Accounting policy

Basis for the preparation of the financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the and the
International Reporting interpretations Committee of the International Accounting Standards Board (IFRIC)
that are related to the operations of the Company and are effective starting from the accounting period that
commenced on 1 January 2005.

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the modified principle of the acquisition value
(due to revaluation of non-current assets, greenhouse gas emissions permits, and the related State grants,
and the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value). Starting from 1 January 2004
(transition to IFRS) the fair value of non-current assets is considered to represent deemed cost.

Non-current intangible assets

Intangible assets should be recognized if it satisfies the definition of intangible assets and the following
recognition criteria: the enterprise can reasonably expect to obtain future economic benefits from the
assets; the historical (production) cost of the assets can be reliably measured and distinguished from the
value of other assets; the enterprise can dispose such assets, control them or limit the others’ right to use
such assets.

The non-current intangible assets are accounted at acquisition costs less accumulated depreciation and the
impairment losses evaluated.

Amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets. The liquidation value is not calculated. In the income statement amortization expenses are
distributed into depreciation, amortization and impairment loss expenses.

The groups of intangible assets and their amortization periods have been determined as follows:

Software 3
Other intangible assets 4

Non-current tangible assets

Non-current tangible assets are recorded at deemed cost less the subsequent accumulated depreciation and
the impairment value. As a result of the Company's transition to IFRS the property, plant and equipment
were revalued at fair value that is considered to be deemed cost as of transition date. Fair value of the
assets was determined on the basis of the results of revaluation performed by the independent assets
valuators UAB “Korporacija Matininkai” on 31 December 2002. The revaluation results were recorded in the
accounts on 1 January 2004.

Depreciation is provided in equal monthly installments except for the month the asset is placed in service
over the expected average useful lives as follows:

Buildings 30-75
Constructions 10-70
Pipelines, lines 10-50
Heat equipment 10-60
Power equipment 10-50
Measuring devices and equipment 5-30
Computer hardware, management and

communication equipment 5-20
Other equipment 5-40
Vehicles 6-50
Tools 5-15
Inventory and other assets 4-15

Assets are recognized as non-current assets if their useful life is longer than one year and the acquisition
value not less than LTL 2,000.
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Gains and losses on disposal of tangible non-current assets are recognized in the income statement during
the year of disposal.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such
indication exists the Company shall recalculate the recoverable value of the assets in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable value of the
assets the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or the cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had not impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. Any reversal of the impairment loss is recognized as
income immediately.

Greenhouse gas emission allowances - The system for trading in greenhouse gas emissions permits
was established on the basis of the Directive 2003/07/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and
will be put into operation on 1 January 2005. The first period of the operation of the system will cover three
years, starting from 2005 and until 2007, the second period will last for five years from 2008 to 2012, in
line with the period established in the Kyoto agreement. The system operates on the basis of “Cap” and
“Trade”. Each Member State of the European Union is required to establish the allowances for each emission
object and the implementation period. The allowances are established in the National Allocation Plan (NAP)
to be drawn up by the competent authority of each Member State (in Lithuania - the Ministry of
Environment). The NAP establishes the annual pollution allowance (measured in tones of carbon dioxide
equivalent) per each object and specified period and allocates the respective annual green house emissions
permits.

A Member State is obligated to allocate the greenhouse emissions permits by 28 February each year on the
basis of the NAP (part of the permits are reserved for new entrants).

A Member State must ensure that by 30 April of the next year the manager of each pollution object submit
the data on the actual emissions during the current calendar year. Such pollution objects shall be obligated
for the first time to submit the reports on the use of the emissions permits for 2005 by 30 April 2006.

Intangible assets
The EU green house emissions permits are the intangible assets allowed by the State in the form of a non-
monetary grant, and recognized in the accounts at fair value at the moment of its issue of the transfer.

Following the initial recognition the intangible asset is revaluated at fair value on the basis of the active
market prices. The revaluation result related to the unused permits is directly recognized in the equity item.
The revaluation result in respect of the liabilities related to the used permits (whether used or transferred) is
recognized in the income statement.

State grant
The EU emissions permits allowed to the Company at no charge are considered to represent the non-

monetary State grants that are recognized in the accounts at fair value at the date of their receipt or issue.
Subsequently the State grant for the use of the emissions permits during the term of validity of such
permits or upon their transfer is recognized as income.

Provision for the use of the greenhouse gas emissions permits

Upon the emission by the Company of pollutants into the environment an obligation arises to account for the
pollution with the State by means of permits the nominal value whereof corresponds to the amount of
emissions. This obligation is a provision that is measured at the value corresponding to the costs to be
incurred by the Company to discharge the liability at the balance sheet date. The liability may be offset with

26



LIETUVOS ELEKTRINE AB

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

intangible assets only provided the amounts of emissions are approved by a competent public authority.
Changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized in the income statement.

Revenue recognition

Sale
Revenue from the supply of power, heat energy and the electric energy reserve are recognized on the
monthly on the basis of the readings of the metering devices (on the basis of the accrual principle).

Sale of services
Revenues are recognized when the transaction is finished or the stage of the completion of the transaction
at the balance sheet date can be measures reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when significant risks related to the sold goods and reward of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest
Interest income is recognized on accrual basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the interest rate
applicable.

Expense recognition
Expense in the accounting is recognized on the basis of the accrual principle.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the costs of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the acquisition value of those assets.

Borrowing costs are recognized as cost in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

The Company has been applying the current accounting policy since 1 January 2005. Before that date the
Company recognized the borrowing costs as costs in the income statement of the period in which they were
incurred.

Financial instruments - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Company's balance
sheet when the Company has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and in bank, term deposits and other short-term liquid
investment readily convertible into express amounts of cash characterized by an insignificant risk of the
change in value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated recoverable amounts are
recognized in the income statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The
impairment amount is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using

the effective interest rate method.
The change in the fair value of the financial instruments is recognized as investment gains (loss).

Accounting of lease
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Lease is classified as financial lease when under the lease terms substantially all the risks and the awards of
the ownership are transferred. The lease of the assets where the lessor retains a substantial part of the risks
and the awards of the ownership is classified as operating lease.

Company as lessor

When assets are held subject to financial lease the present value of the lease payment is recognized s a
receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is
recognized as unearned financial income. Lease income is recognized over the term of the lease using the
net investment method which reflects a constant period rate of return.

Assets held under operating lease are recorded in the balance sheet as non-current tangible assets. Such
assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Rental income from operating leases is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Company as lessee

Assets held under financial lease are recognized as assets at fair value equal to the fair value at the
beginning of the lease, and where the fair value is lower then at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a financial lease
obligation. The lease payments are distinguished into financial costs and the reduction of the financial
liability so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations.
Financial costs are recognized as costs in the income statement

Inventories
Inventories in the financial statements are stated at the lower of acquisition (production) cost or net
realizable value.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprises the purchase price, al purchase-related taxes (except those
to be recovered later), transportation, preparation for use and other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of inventories.

The cost of inventories is computed using the FIFO cost method (which assumes that the items of inventory
that were sold or used first are purchased first) and the weighted average method (in respect of boiler oil).

Appropriate consideration is given to deterioration, obsolescence and other factors when evaluating net
realizable value.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable in the current year and movements in
deferred income tax.

The charge for current tax is based on the result for the year as adjusted for items not increasing or
decreasing the income tax. The income tax costs are calculated using tax rates effective at the date of the
drawing up of the financial statements.

The deferred tax is accounted using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured for future tax purposes, recognizing the differences between the carrying amount of existing
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and the deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that will probably reduce the tax liability in the future. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill), or from the initial recognition (other
than in business combination) of other assets and liabilities in transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investment in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probably that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that is not longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to realize the asset to the
amount that will probably in the future reduce the tax profit.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the effective tax rate used to calculate the taxable
income of the year in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse or be settled. The deferred
tax costs and income are recognized in the income statement except where they are related to items
accounted in owners’ equity when the deferred taxes are also accounted in owners' equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same authority
and when the Company intends to cover the taxes due at fair value.

Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into litas at the official exchange rate as fixed
by the Bank of Lithuania on the date of the transaction which approximates the prevailing market rates.
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange of the balance sheet date. The
applicable rates used for the drawing up of the balance sheet as of 31 December 2006 and 2005 were as
follows:

2006 2005
1USD = LTL 2.6304 1USD = LTL 2.9102
1 EUR = LTL 3.4528 1 EUR = LTL 3.4528

Exchange rate differences resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in
the income statement in the period in which they arise. Gain or loss on changes in the foreign currency
exchange rates when translating the monetary assets or liabilities into litas are recorded in the annual
income statement.

Business segment

A business segment is a distinguishable component of a company that is engaged in providing an individual
product or service or a group of related products or services that is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business components of the Company.

The business segments distinguished in the operations of the Company are the production of power and
heat energy.

Geographical segment

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of a company that is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular geographic economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of the components operating in other geographic economic environment.

The Company does not distinguish any geographical segments.

Financial risk management policy

Credit risk

Credit risk attributable to trade receivables is limited because the principal customer of the Company is its
reliable customer AB “Lietuvos energija”.

Credit risk related to cash in bank is limited because the Company effects operations with banks of high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Interest rate risk
The Company's loans consist of loans with floating interest rate which is related to LIBOR, VILIBOR. The
Company did not use any financial instruments in order to control the risk of interest rate changes.

Foreign currency exchange risk
The Company uses the derivative financial instruments in order to control foreign currencies exchange risk .

Liquidity risk
In order to maintain a sufficient amount of cash and control over liquidity risk the Company makes monthly
and annual cash flows forecasts.
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Accounting of grants
Grants are accounted on the accrual basis, i.e., grants received are recognized as used in the periods in
which the costs related to the grants are incurred.

Assets-related grants

Grants received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the acquisition of non-current assets. The
grants are measured at fair value of the assets received and recognized to the extent of the share used by
reducing the assets depreciation costs over the useful life of the corresponding non-current assets.

Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the Company's financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
the shareholders.

Related parties

Related parties are defined as shareholders, employees, members of the Board, their close relatives, profit -
seeking State controlled companies, and the companies that directly r indirectly via an intermediary control
the Company or are controlled or are under control with the other party that is also recognized as a related
party on the condition that this relationship enables one of the parties or exercise a significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operating decisions.
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4. Critical judgments and uncertainties

Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policy

Non-current assets depreciation rates

In making its judgment for the remaining useful life of the non-current tangible assets the management of
the Company is guided by the conclusions of the employees responsible for the maintenance of the non-
current tangible assets.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities are discussed below.

Fair value of the non-current tangible assets

The Company, on the annual basis, referring to the assets impairment accounting policy, examines the non-
current tangible assets for possible impairment loss. The recoverable value of the money-generating unit is
established on the usage value method. As of 31 December 2006, non-current tangible assets showed no
indications of the impairment loss of the fair value.
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5. Tangible assets

Buildings Other
and property, Construc-tion
construction Machinery and plant and in progress
s (LTL) equipment Vehicles  equipment (LTL)
(LTL) (LTL) (LTL) Total (LTL)

Deemed cost
31 December 2005. 217,497,737 978,236,744 2,523,797 190,283,491 3,228,018 1,391,769,788
Change of the financial year:
- acquisitions - 153,325,932 208,525 842,815 1,078,890 155,456,163
- disposals and write-offs (-) (3,654) (68,936) (238,358) - (310,948)
- written back - - - 1,700 - 1,700
- transfers from one heading to

another +/(-) (89,580) 1,116,503 6,007 163,290 (1,147,450) 48,500
31 December 2006 217,407,887 1,132,675,525 2,669,394 191,052,938 3,159,458 1,549,924,220

Depreciation

31 December 2005 47,493,136 244,552,198 1,555,507 43,749,544 - 337,350,385
Change of the financial year:
- depreciation in the financial
year 3,036,933 18,523,258 143,497 4,255,076 - 25,958,765
- depreciation of transferred and
written—off assets (-) - (3,451) (68,487) (232,169) - (304,107)
- reclassification from deemed
cost
- written back - - - 1,700 - 1,700
- transfers from one heading to
another +/(-) (89,580) (28,859) 5,704 129,381 - 16,376
31 December 2006 50,440,219 263,043,147 1,636,221 47,903,532 - 363,023,119
Residual value
31 December 2005 170,004,602 733,684,546 968,290 146,533,947 3,228,018 1,054,419,403
Residual value
31 December 2006 166,967,668 869,632,378 1,033,172 143,149,406 3,159,458 1,183,842,084

All non-current assets of the Company are held for own use. The depreciation costs adjusted for the used
part of the grant are accounted as cost and other operating costs (Notes 15, 21, 24).

Under a syndicated credit agreement the Company has subscribed to mortgage bonds and pledged plant
and property the residual value whereof, was, respectively, LTL 343,539,000 and LTL 140,986 000. As of 31
December 2005, the Company had no pledged non-current assets.

Residual value of leased property as of 31 December 2006 was LTL 94,859 (31 December 2005 - LTL
106,242).
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6. Intangible assets

Greenhouse gas Other
emissions permits intangible
Software (LTL) (Note 13 (LTL) assets (LTL) Total (LTL)

Acquisition cost

31 December 2005 402,235 216,000,273 - 216,000,273
Change in the financial year:

- acquisition of assets 26,866 49,634,105 2,968,844 52,629,815

- transferred and written-off (-) (14,982) (52,219,436) (52,234,418)

- transfers to tangible assets (-) (48,500) - -

- impairment of the unused greenhouse

gas emissions permits - (113,601,176) 2,968,844 (113,601,176)

31 December 2006 365,619 99,813,766 2,968,844 103,148,229

Amortization

31 December 2005. 311,056 - - 311,056
Change in the financial year: -

- amortization in the financial year 48,907 - - 48,907

- amortization of transferred ad written-off

assets (-) (14,982) - - (14,982)

- transfers to tangible assets (-) (16,376) - - (16,376)
31 December 2006 328,605 - - 328,605
Residual value

31 December 2005 91,179 216,000,273 - 216,091,452
Residual value

31 December 2006 37,014 99,813,766 2,968,844 102,819,624

Amortization costs are accounted as cost.

7. Long-term receivables

As of 31 December amounts receivable after one year were as follows:

2006 2005

(LTL) (LTL)
Receivables for loans to employees 1,248,458 1,344,295
Total: 1,248,458 1,344,295

Annual interest rate for the loans extended is 0.1 — 1 percent, maturity — up to 25 years.
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8. Inventories

As of 3 December the Company’s inventories comprised:

2006 2005
(LTL) (LTL)
Fuel 26,885,190 24,375,914
Spare parts 4,486,490 4,686,025
Materials 2,976,130 4,039,527
Other 174,408 252,282
Total: 34,522,218 33,353,748

Under credit agreement concluded with AB bankas “Norld/LB"”, the Company on 31 December 2006 pledged
the fuel reserves for LTL 16,242,618 (2005 -LTL 16,242,618 Lt) (Note 16).

9. Amounts receivable and prepayments

As of 31 December amounts receivable within one year were as follows:

2006 2005

(LTL) (LTL)
Trade receivables 26,867,954 19,901,971
Provisions for doubtful debts (-) (898,439) (1,143,288)
VAT receivable - 1,224,856
Prepayments 743,552 920,245
Other debts 36,676 41,782
Total: 26,749,743 20,945,566
Change in allowances for doubtful amounts in the year:

2006 2005

(Lt) (Lt)
1 January. 1,143,288 1,540,706
Provision write back (Note 23) (244,849) (397,418)
31 December . 898,439 1,143,288
10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on 31 December:

2006 2005

(Lt) (Lt)

Funds in current bank accounts 52,714,038 4,461,781
Overnight deposit 8,669,529 9,630,746
Total: 61,383,567 14,092,527

According to credit agreement concluded with AB bankas “DnB Nord”, the Company had pledged the
existing and future funds held with the bank. The balance of the funds with AB bankas “"DnB Nord” as of 31
December 2006 was LTL 793,067 (2005: LTL 877,164).
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11. Share capital

On 31 December, the Company's share capital consisted of 145,800,689 ordinary registered shares at par
value of LTL 1 each. All shares are fully paid up.

On 31 December, the Company's shareholders were:

Holding in the authorized capital

Shareholders

(LTL) Percent
State represented by the Ministry of Economy of the 140,638,221 96,46
Republic of Lithuania
Other 5,162,468 3,54
Total: 145,800,689 100.00

In the accounting year 2006 the share capital of the Company did not change.

12. Reserves

The revaluation reserve consists of the appreciation of the non-current tangible assets resulting from the
asset revaluation. The independent assets valuators UAB “Korporacija Matininkai” conducted the asset
valuation on 31 December 2002. The revaluation results were recorded in the accounts on 1 January 2004.
The legal reserve is compulsory under the Lithuanian legislation. Annual contributions of at lest 5% of the
net distributable profit is required until the legal reserve reaches 10% of the registered share capital. This
reserve may be used only for the reduction of the accumulated loss.

On 31 December 2006, other reserves of the Company accounted for LTL 57,736,702.

13. Greenhouse gas emission permits

On 31 December the greenhouse gas emission allowances were accounted as follows:

Greenhouse

Greenhouse gas emission Provisions for

gas emission allowances unused gas

allowances revaluation State grants emission
(Note 6) reserve (Note 15) allowances
(LTL) (LTL) (LTL) (LTL)

31 December 2005 216,000,273 98,822,418 64,978,063 52,199,792
State grant received at fair value 162,000,205 - 162,000,205 -
Approved emissions (52,219,436) (11,852) (7,793) (52,199,792)

Impairment of greenhouse gas
emission permits

Provisions for used gas emission
allowances

31 December 2006

(225,967,276)

(98,810,566)

(127,156,709)

(43,428,302)

43,428,302

99,813,766

56,385,464

43,428,302
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14. Draft profit distribution

Draft profit distribution of 31 December for approval of the shareholders, Annex 1

15. Grants and subsidies

Balance of grants as of 31 December and the use during the year:

Assets-related
Assets-related grants (Renovation,

grants (fuel environmental and
incineration safety standards Grants for
plant and enhancement greenhouse gas
other property project) emission
(LTL) (Lt) allowances (LTL) Total (LTL)

Balance of grants as of 31

December 2004 3,238,021 19,895,000 - 23,133,021
Depreciation of non-current assets (373,619) - - (373,617)
Grants received - 19,971,000 85,685,215 105,656,215
Greenhouse gas emission

allowances used - - (20,707,152) (20,707,152)
Balance of grants as of 31

December 2005 2,864,402 39,866,000 64,978,063 107,708,465
Depreciation of non-current assets

(Note 5) (373,698) - - (373,698)
Grants received 14,477 108,196,951 162,000,205 270,211,633
Impairment of greenhouse gas

emission allowances - - (127,156,709) (127,156,709)
greenhouse gas emission

allowances used - - (43,436,095) (43,436,095)
Balance of grants as of 31

December 2006 2,505,181 148,062,951 56,385,464 206,953,596

During 2006, the assets-related grants (fuel incineration plant and other assets) decreased by LTL 373,69,
for the amount of the depreciation of non-current assets (2005 - LTL 373,619). This amount decreased the
cost of depreciation of non-current assets in the income statement.

During 2006 the Company from the State enterprise Ignalina Nuclear Power Plat decommissioning fund
received grants of LTL 19,259,386 (2005 - LTL 19,971,000). The funds are intended for co-financing of the
renovation, environmental and safety standards enhancement project. As of 31 December 2006, all funds
were used (on 31 December 2005, they were not yet used).

Per 2006 from the International Ignalina Decommissioning Support Fund received LTL 88,937,565 (no
receipts in 2005). The funds will be used for co-financing of the project of the removal of sulphuric oxides
from smoke and the solid particles collection plant. As of 31 December 2006, all funds were used.
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16. Bank loans

As of 31 December the loans from banks were as follows:

2006 2005
(LTL) (LTL)
AB bankas “DnB Nord”, EUR, repayable by 01-05-2013 12,999,792 12,999,792
Syndycated loan (AB bankas “Hansabankas”, AB “SEB
Vilniaus bankas”, Nordea Bank Finland Plc Lithuanian
branch, AB bankas “"DnB Nord”), Lt, repayable by 09-
11-2020 34,923,304 -
47,923,096 12,999,792
Bank loans will be repaid:
In the first year - -
In the second year - -
In the third year 2,850,632 -
In the fourth year 6,564,857 -
In the fifth year 6,564,857 3,714,225
After five years 31,942,751 9,285,567
47,923,096 12,999,792
Short-term share - -
Long-term share 47,923,096 12,999,792
47,923,096 12,999,792

Under the credit agreement signed with AB bankas “Nord/LB” the Company was extended a credit of
3,765,000 EUR. Credit repayable in 2010-2013. Floating interest rate applies - 12 months LIBOR + 0.84 %
margin. Under this agreement the Company as of 31 December 2006 had pledged its current and future
funds in the accounts of the bank and part of the fuel reserve for LTL 16,242,618 (2005 - LTL 16,242,618).
Under this credit agreement on 31 December 2006 and 2005, all funds of the credit were used.

On 9 November 2005, the Company signed the credit agreement with AB bankas “Hansabankas", AB SEB
Vilniaus bankas, Nordea Bank Finland Plc Lithuanian branch and AB bankas “Nord/LB Lietuva”, providing for
a 49,000,000 EUR loan to the Company. Floating interest rate applies - 12 months LIBOR + 0.8 % margin.
The ultimate credit repayment date is 9 November 2020. After the balance sheet date, on 28 March 2006,
the Company subscribed to mortgage bonds and pledged the equipment for LTL 343,539,000, buildings for
LTL140,986,000. Under the agreement the Company as undertaken jointly to all the banks to pledge its
current and future funds in the Bank’s accounts. Under this credit agreement as of 31 December the
Company has withdrawn 10,114,488 EUR (not used on 31 December 2005). Purpose of the credit -
financing of the first investment program.

The carrying amount of the bank loans is approximate to their fair value.
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17. Financial lease liabilities

On 31 December 2006, the future minimum financial lease

installments consisted of:

Minimum
financial lease
installments

Present value of
the minimum
financial lease

installments

Amounts payable under financial lease agreements :

During the firs year
During the second-fifth year
After five years
Minimum financial lease installments
Less the interest

Present value of the minimum financial lease installments

(LTL) (LTL)

2006 2006
40,371 39,283
6,728 6,696
47,099 -
(1,120) -
45,979 45,979

Leasing liabilities are secured since in case of default under the leasing liabilities the ownership of the assets
held under lease shall automatically be returned to the lessor.

The leasing agreement provides for the interest rate of 6 months’ EURIBOR + 1.67 % margin.

18. Trade and other payables

As of 31 December, trade and other amounts payable were as follows:

2006 2005

(LTL) (LTL)
Debts to suppliers for construction works and investment 20,192,722 2,233,653
Debts to suppliers for fuel 8,820,749 3,201,692
Debts to suppliers for repair works 2,609,076 1,573,725
Debts to suppliers for inventories 1,314,254 4,362,429
Other debts for services 1,473,461 235,732
Tax payable (except corporate income tax) 1,166,321 683,472
Advance payments received 1,107,281 54,653
Outstanding dividends 886,655 974,007
Other 70,758 107,717
Total: 37,641,277 13,427,079

19. Liabilities related to labour relations

As of 31 December , the Company’s’ liabilities related to labour relations were as follows:

Holiday reserve
Taxes payable

Total:

2006 2005

(LTL) (LTL)
1,339,932 1,088,526
597,730 624,254
1,937,662 1,712,780
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20. Sales

Sales for the year that ended on 31 December were:

Production of electricity
Cold capacity reserve
Heat energy

Warm reserve

Other revenue

Total:

21. Costs

Costs for the year that ended on 31 December were:

Gas

Depreciation and amortization costs
Wages and social insurance
Materials

Repair

Orimulsion

Balancing electric energy

Boiler fuel

Other

Total:

2006 2005
(LTL) (LTL)
119,632,890 118,176,862
53,938,780 69,589,440
9,056,004 8,497,652
7,971,600 6,524,047
163,085 170,525
190,762,359 202,958,526
2006 2005
(LTL) (LTL)
126,799,141 83,489,206
25,618,974 24,490,469
21,536,914 19,689,095
14,609,004 21,492,231
13,789,597 6,113,757
9,212,068 17,531,647
3,097,356 617,894
1,243,389 705,014
1,038,293 941,609
216,944,735 175,070,921
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22. Business segments

The Company distinguishes the electric energy production and the heat energy production business
segments. Information for the two business segments as of 31 December 2006 and for the year then ended

is provided below:

Thermal
Electricity energy
production production

2006 (LTL) (LTL) Other (LTL) Total (LTL)
Sales 181,706,355 9,056,004 - 190,762,359
Costs (207,566,510) (9,378,226) (216,944,735)
Segment gross profit
Operating costs (13,215,580)
Other operating income 73,324,327
Other operating costs (2,382,353)
Interest income 541,731
Financing costs (461,719)
Effect of changes in the currency exchange

rate (450,430)
Profit tax expenses (6,166,379)
Net profit 25,007,221
Other information
Assets 1,029,303,397 7,976,724 373,626,761 1,410,906,882
Liabilities 257,463,502 257,463,134
Acquisitions of tangible and intangible

assets 208,076,151 208,085,978
Depreciation and amortization 25,792,672 200,000 15,000 26,007,672

Information for the two business segments as of 31 December 2005 and for the year then ended is

provided below.

Thermal
Electricity energy
production production

2005 (LTL) (LTL) Other (LTL) Total (LTL)
Sales 194,460,874 8,497,652 - 202,958,526
Costs (169,039,935) (6,030,986) - (175,070,921)
Segment gross profit 25,420,939 2,466,666 - 27,887,605
Operating costs (13,117,755)
Other operating income 2,309,867
Other operating costs (2,061,449)
Interest income 499,803
Financing costs (921,192)
Effect of changes in the currency exchange

rate 5,950,087
Profit tax expenses (3,317,123)
Net profit 17,229,843
Other information
Assets 1,167,777,540 9,463,468 163,212,803 1,340,453,811
Liabilities - - 207,456,489 207,456,489
Acquisitions of tangible and intangible

assets - - 264,403,569 264,403,569
Depreciation and amortization 24,664,724 200,000 15,000 24,879,724
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23. Operating costs

Operating costs for the year than ended on 31 December, was:

2006 2005
(LTL) (LTL)
Salaries and social insurance 3,583,859 3,143,515
Pollution tax 966,771 1,820,044
Land lease charge 755,783 755,786
Property security costs 755,017 503,918
Immovable property tax 544,147 524,325
Insurance costs 484,022 41,403
Repair 374,276 744,051
Business trips 326,668 229,456
Communications and postal services 267,997 262,803
Costs of unused vacations by employees 251,406 153,526
Check-ups and servicing 164,942 133,891
Employee training 152,270 129,435
Consulting and translation services 83,131 1,701,905
Medical servicing costs 71,633 81,162
Electric energy purchased 51,138 41,533
Current assets write-offs 35,311 60,103
Road tax - 443,906
Provisions for amounts receivable (Note 9) (244,849) (397,418)
Other 4,592,056 2,744,411
Total: 13,215,580 13,117,755
24, Other operating income and costs
Other operating income and costs for the year that ended on 31 December were:
2006 2005
(LTL) (LTL)
Other operating income
Profit from transfer of gas emissions permits 71,173,430 -
Income from custody of material resources 1,358,943 1,530,439
Dispenser servicing income 332,635 426,567
Lease income 124,224 122,137
Other income 127,809 117,400
Profit from disposal of current assets 158,723 22,338
Fines and late interest 46,496 90,986
Profit from disposal of non-current assets 2,068 -
73,324,327 2,309,867
Other operating costs
Costs of sale of greenhouse gas emissions
allowances (653,130) -
Costs of custody of material resources (1,367,219) (1,522,411)
Depreciation costs related to the custody of
material resources (15,000) (15,000)
Dispenser servicing costs (324,026) (491,592)
Other costs (22,978) (32,446)
(2,382,353) (2,061,449)
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25. Financing costs

Financing costs for the year that ended on 31 December, were:

2006 2005

(Lt) (Lt)
Interest costs 583,379 988,924
Other financing costs 359,538 340,674
942,917 1,329,598
Less: capitalized interest costs (481,198) (408,406)
Total: 461,719 921,192

26. Income tax expense

The income tax calculation on the basis of the income tax expense computed at the statutory rate of income

tax (2006 - 19 %, 2005 -15 %):

2006 % 2005 %
(LTL) LTL
Profit (loss) before tax 31,173,600 20,546,966
Tax at the statutory income tax rate (19%) 5,922,984 19% 3,082,045 15%
Tax effect of non-taxable income (213,476) (1%) (1,136,771) (5%)
Tax effect of costs not increasing the income
tax 4,043,835 13% 2,904,975 14%
Adjustment of prior year income tax (348,556) (1%) 1,104,721 5%
Deferred income tax liability (reduction) (3,238,408) (10%) (2,637,847) (13%)
Income tax expense 6,166,379 20% 3,317,123 16%
Income tax expense comprised:
Current year income tax expense 9,753,343 31% 4,850,249 24%
Adjustment of prior year income tax (348,556) (1%) 1,104,721 5%
Deferred income tax asset (3,238,408) (10%) (2,637,847) (13%)
Income tax expense 6,166,379 (20%) 3,317,123 16%
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27. Deferred income tax

During the year that ended on 31 December the movement in deferred income tax were as follows:

Deferred income tax asset

Balance as of 31 December 2004

Reduction of the non-current asset

revaluation reserve due to the change

in the deferred income tax rate
Recognized (assets) in income
statement

Balance as of 31 December 2005
Recognized (assets) in income
statement

Balance as of 31 December 2006

Balance as of 31 December 2004

Reduction of the non-current asset
revaluation reserve due to the
change in the deferred income tax
rate

Recognized (assets) in income
statement

Balance as of 31 December 2005
Recognized (assets) in income
statement

Balance as of 31 December 2006

Vacation
reserve (LTL)

(140,250)

(66,570)

(206,820)

(34,368)

(241,188)

Accelerated
Deferred income tax liabilities ldepreciation (LTL)

Revalued assets

(LTL) Total (LTL)
4,029,161 123,132,136 127,161,297
- 909,639 909,639
(177,946) (2,393,331) (2,571,277)
3,851,215 121,648,444 125,499,659
(173,625) (3,030,415) (3,204,040)
3,677,589 118,618,029 122,295,619
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28. Earnings per share

The earnings per share has been calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of ordinary shares
during the year that ended on 31 December 2006 and 2005, which accounted for 140,711,469 shares.

As of 31 December 2006 and 2005 and during the year then ended the Company had not effected any
options diluting the earnings per share.

29. Related party transactions

During the year that ended on 31 December 2006, transactions with State controlled entities and the
balances were as follows:

Amounts Amounts

State controlled entities payable receivable Income generated Costs incurred
AB “Lietuvos energija” 1,207,994 24,898,009 181,923,575 3,231,022
UAB “Elektrény komunalinis

ukis” - 711,601 4,185,331 -
VSI Abromiskiy rehabilitation

hospital - 32,264 197,452 -
AB “Ryty skirstomieji tinklai”,

Vilnius branch - - - 56,274
AB “Lietuvos geleZinkeliai” - - - 1,801,994
Total: 1,207,994 25,641,874 186,306,358 5,089,290

The management of the Company maintains that all transactions with the State controlled entities were
concluded under the same terms as transactions with the unrelated parties.

The average number of managers in the Company in 2006 and 2005 was 3. Benefits to the managers during
2006 amounted to LTL 517,678 (LTL 502,777 in 2005).

30. Conditional commitments (LTL)

The Company had concluded a long-term agreement concerning the purchase of Orimulsion (a future
contract) with the Venezuelan company “Bitor Europe” valid until 2012. Under this agreement the Company
has irrevocably undertaken to purchase a specified amount of fuel at an established price for USD 5.1m -
7.7m each year. The Company intends to terminate this Agreement in 2007.

General Manager
Pranas Noreika

Chief Financier
Rolandas Jankauskas
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Annex 1

Company Name

AB LIETUVOS ELEKTRINE

Adress Elektrinés 21, Elektrénai
Approved
DRAFT PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
31 december 2006
LTL
No. Items 2006 2005
I. Retained earnings at the beginning of the year 0 -4,771,073
II. Net profit of the year 25,007,221 17,229,843
11 Retained earnings available for distribution at 25,007,221 12,458,770
the end of the year
1v. Shareholders' contributions against losses 0 0
V. Transfer from the reserves 0 0
VI. Distributable profit 25,007,221 12,458,770
VII. Profit distribution: 25,007,221 12,458,770
VIIL.1. transfer to legal reserves 1,251,440 861,492
VIIL.2. transfer to other reserves 20,700,781 3,883,770
VII.3. dividends 0 4,983,508
VIL. 4. profit allocation to yearly payoffs:
VII.4.1. support 500,000 1,200,000
VII.4.2. bonuses of employees and orher purpose 2,500,000 1,500,000
VIL.5. annual bonuses for the Board 55,000 30,000
VIII. Undistributed result at the end of the year 0 0

General Director
Pranas Noreika

Chief Accountant
Rolandas Jankauskas
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Annex 1

Disclosure form concerning the compliance with th&overnance Code for the companies listed
on the regulated market

The public company Lietuvos elektéinfollowing Article 21 paragraph 3 of the Law oncBadties of the Republic of Lithuania
and item 20.5 of the Trading Rules of the Vilniuseck Exchange, discloses its compliance with thegBmance Code, approved
by the VSE for the companies listed on the regdlatarket, and its specific provisions. In the ev@nton-compliance with the

Code or with certain provisions thereof, it mustdpecified which provisions are not complied witidahe reasons of non-
compliance.

YES/NO
PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS INOT COMMENTARY

APPLICABLE

Principle I: Basic Provisions

The overriding objective of a company should be t@perate in common interests of all the shareholderby optimizing over time
shareholder value.

1.1. A company should adopt and make public [the Yes Plans and forecasted results of the Companpudished on
company’s development strategy and objectives bgrbt an annual report.

declaring how the company intends to meet the esterof
its shareholders and optimize shareholder value.

1.2. All management bodies of a company shouldimdt  Yes The Company’s supervisory and management bodies
furtherance of the declared strategic objectivesi@w of focused on the implementation of the main objestiamd
the need to optimize shareholder value. tasks of the Company.

1.3. A company’s supervisory and management bodies Yes The Supervisory Board of the Company, the Maneent
should act in close co-operation in order to attaaximum Board and the Head of the Company cooperate in \déw
benefit for the company and its shareholders. seeking the best benefit for the Company and #asediolders.
1.4. A company’s supervisory and management bodies Yes The Company fully complies with these recomnagiods.

should ensure that the rights and interests ofopersther
than the company’s shareholders (e.g. employeesditors,
suppliers, clients, local community), participatirig or
connected with the company’s operation, are diudpeeted.

Principle II: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure thstrategic guidance of the company, the effectiaversight of the company’s
management bodies, an appropriate balance and distution of functions between the company’s bodiesprotection of the
shareholders’ interests.

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in tiav on Yes Both the collegial suprevisory body — the suisery board
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania — a genéral and the collegial management body - the managebwedtare
shareholders’ meeting and the chief executive effidt is formed in the Company.

recommended that a company should set up bothegil
supervisory body and a collegial management bodhe [T
setting up of collegial bodies for supervision gnd
management facilitates clear separation of managearel
supervisory functions in the company, accountabitihd
control on the part of the chief executive officeshich, in




its turn, faciltate a more efficient and transpar
management process.

ww

2.2. A collegial management body is responsible tfer
strategic management of the company and perforimsr

Yes
bt

key functions of corporate governance. A collegial

supervisory body is responsible for the effectiupesvision
of the company’s management bodies.

The supervisory board of the Company is respten$or the
supervision of the Company’s Board and generattbre

The management Bord of the Company is responsibl¢he
strategic management of the Company and other main
functions of corporate government.

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one gialle Not

body, it is recommended that it should be a superyi
body, i.e. the supervisory board. In such a cabe,
supervisory board is responsible for the effecthanitoring

applicable
t

of the functions performed by the company's cHief

executive officer.

Both the collegial suprevisory body — the supemyisiboard
and the collegial management body - the manageiveantd
are formed in the Company.

2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be electgdtle
general shareholders’ meeting should be set upshodld
act in the manner defined in Principles Il and Where a
company should decide not to set up a collegiaksuigory
body but rather a collegial management body, he.board,
Principles Il and IV should apply to the boardlasg as
that does not contradict the essence and purpogti
body!

Yes

The supervisory board of the Company (alsontheagemen
board insofar as it is posible) is formed and of=ran the
manner defined in Principles Il and IV.

2.5. Company’s management and supervisory bodmsdl Yes

comprise such number of board (executive directars)
supervisory (non-executive directors) board memltbes
no individual or small group of individuals can doate
decision-making on the part of these bodies.

The supervisory board of the Company consfsismoembers.
The management board of the Company also consisEs |0
members.

Such number of members of the collegial manageineay is
optimal considering the Company’'s operation and
particularity.

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the supery Yes The supervisory board of the Company shallléeted for the
board should be appointed for specified terms stlije maximum period of 4 years.

individual re-election, at maximum intervals prositifor in In accordance with the Law on Companies of the Ripof

the Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensurimgcessary Lithuania the General meeting of shareholders iitles to

development of professional experience and sufftbie revoke all or individual members of the supervistagard
frequent reconfirmation of their status. A possipilto before expiration of their tenure.

remove them should also be stipulated however [this

procedure should not be easier than the removaedwore

for an executive director or a member of the marreye

board.

2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by gemeral Yes The chairman of the supervisory board is tipeesentative of

shareholders’ meeting may be a person whose cuare
past office constitutes no obstacle to conduct pedeent

the main shareholder. The supervisory’s chairmas hat
been the head of the Company, and his currentceffi

! Provisions of Principles Ill and IV are more applite to those instances when the general sharekolaeeting elects the
supervisory board, i.e. a body that is essentfalisned to ensure oversight of the company’s boaritae chief executive officer and
to represent the company’s shareholders. Howevease the company does not form the supervisaydidout rather the board, most
of the recommendations set out in Principles I & become important and applicable to the boardiell. Furthermore, it should be
noted that certain recommendations, which are éir #ssence and nature applicable exclusivelyécstipervisory board, should not
be applied to the board, as the competence andidaecof these bodies according to the Law on Camngsaof the Republic of
Lithuania Qfficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574) are different. For instand¢emi 3.1 of the Code concerning oversight of the
management bodies applies to the extent it condamsversight of the chief executive officer oé tbompany, but not of the board
itself; item 4.1 of the Code concerning recommeiondatto the management bodies applies to the eittegiates to the provision of
recommendations to the company’s chief executifieasf item 4.4 of the Code concerning independearfabe collegial body elected
by the general meeting from the company’s managetedies is applied to the extent it concerns iedejence from the chief

executive officer.

2 Definitions‘executive directorand‘non-executive directorare used in cases when a company has only ongjiebledy.



and impartial supervision. Where a company shoelcid®
not to set up a supervisory board but rather tredyat is
recommended that the chairman of the board andf
executive officer of the company should be a défern
person. Former company’s chief executive officeousth
not be immediately nominated as the chairman of
collegial body elected by the general shareholdeesting.
When a company chooses to departure from these
recommendations, it should furnish information dre t
measures it has taken to ensure impartiality of |the
supervision.

hie

the

constitutes no obstacle to conduct independentiupdrial
supervision.

Principle Ill: The order of the formation of a coll egial body to be elected by a general shareholdensieeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be lected by a general shareholders’ meeting should sare representation of
minority shareholders, accountability of this bodyto the shareholders and objective monitoring of theeompany’s operation and its

management bodies.

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collepiadly to
be elected by a general shareholders’ meetingi(iagter in
this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial bodghould
ensure objective and fair monitoring of the company
management bodies as well as representation ofrityin
shareholders.

[©)

Yes

The supervisory board is elected in compliaméth the
procedure prescribed by the law on companies oR#gublic
of Lithuania. This mechanism ensure objective aadf
monitoring of the company’s.

The member of the supervisory board can be a pevibrthe
right qualification.

All members of the supervisory board are not thplegees of
the Company, and all of them are the representtiethe
main shareholder - the State, represented by thestdi of
Economy of the Republic of Lithuania.

Small shareholders can not be represented on Ssper
board as their portion of the capital is only 3%4 However,
the rights of the small shareholders’ are protetigthe main
shareholder — the State.

3.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to becomeYes

members of a collegial body, information about thei
education, qualification, professional backgroupdsitions
taken and potential conflicts of interest shoulddizelosed
early enough before the general shareholders’ ngpeto
that the shareholders would have sufficient timenake an
informed voting decision. All factors affecting the
candidate’s independence, the sample list of wisiclet out
in Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed
collegial body should also be informed on any sgbsat
changes in the provided information. The colledgialdy
should, on yearly basis, collect data providechis item on
its members and disclose this in the company’s anhu
report.

Th

Information about the members of the superyibord (their
qualification, positions taken) is disclosed by empany in
its periodical reports, also is included in the ratge of the
general shareholders’ meeting.

3.3. Should a person be nominated for members of a
collegial body, such nomination should be followmdthe

disclosure of information on candidate’s particular

Yes

Before a member is appointed to the supervibogrd, the
information about candidate’s qualification, pasi in other
companies is presented for the shareholders atdiménating

f

3 Attention should be drawn to the fact that in $iteation where the collegial body elected by thaeyal shareholders’ meeting is the
board, it is natural that being a management bbdauld ensure oversight not of all managemeniesoaf the company, but only of
the single-person body of management, i.e. the eowip chief executive officer. This note shall apipl respect of item 3.1 as well.



competences relevant to his/her service on theegiall
body. In order shareholders and investors are &bl
ascertain whether member’'s competence is furtevast,
the collegial body should, in its annual reporgcttse the|
information on its composition and particular cotepees
of individual members which are relevant to theirvice on
the collegial body.

meeting.
Information about the members to the supervisorgrdbds
disclosed by the Company in its periodical reports.

ts

3.4. In order to maintain a proper balance in teahshe Yes The supervisory board of the Company is forrtadghg into

current qualifications possessed by its memberg | th consideration the Company’s structure and actiitieThe

collegial body should determine its desired compmsi members have a recent knowlegde and relevante ierper

with regard to the company’s structure and acésitiand for the proper performance of their tasks.

have this periodically evaluated. The collegial yoathould

ensure that it is composed of members who, as dewho

have the required diversity of knowledge, judgment

experience to complete their tasks properly. Thenbegs of

the audit committee, collectively, should have aerd

knowledge and relevant experience in the fieldfirznce,

accounting and/or audit for the stock exchangeedist

companies.

3.5. All new members of the collegial body should [b  Yes Present memebers of the supervisory board éxperience of|

offered a tailored program focused on introducingeanber the companies’ management.

with his/her duties, corporate organization andvaies. New members elected to the supervisory board of |the

The collegial body should conduct an annual review Company are made familiar with the Company,

identify fields where its members need to updaggr tbkills organization, activity specifics.

and knowledge.

3.6. In order to ensure that all material confliofsnterest No There has been any independent member in thensspry

related with a member of the collegial body areohe=d board of the Company. All supervisory bord’s mersbare

properly, the collegial body should comprise a isight' representative of the main shareholder.

number of independeihmembers. Nonetheless, all material conflicts of interesthnatmember of
collegial body are resolved properly.

3.7. A member of the collegial body should be cdewtd to Yes Independence of the members of the supervisoayd of the

be |ndepen<_jent (_)nly 'f. he is free of any bus_lnéamlly or. Company evaluate in accordance with this recomntenrda

other relationship with the company, its contrglip

shareholder or the management of either, that eseat According to the criteria laid down in this parggnathere has

conflict of interest such as to impair his judgmegince all been any independent member in the supervisorydbadl

cases when member of the collegial body is likedy| t supervisory bord’s members are representative ef rtain

become dependant are impossible to list, moredgver,

relationships and circumstances associated with | the shareholder.

determination of independence may vary amongst

companies and the best practices of solving thablpm are

yet to evolve in the course of time, assessmenf of

independence of a member of the collegial body lshba
based on the contents of the relationship and mistances
rather than their form. The key criteria for idéyitig
whether a member of the collegial body can be demsd
to be independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive director or member ef

th

board (if a collegial body elected by the geneg

ral

4 The Code does not provide for a concrete numbeénd#pendent members to comprise a collegial biBny codes in foreign
countries fix a concrete number of independent neemfe.g. at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members otttegial body) to comprise the
collegial body. However, having regard to the ntvef the institution of independent members irhuénia and potential problems in
finding and electing a concrete number of indepahdeembers, the Code provides for a more flexibgdng and allows the
companies themselves to decide what number of erignt members is sufficient. Of course, a largantrer of independent
members in a collegial body is encouraged andoaitistitute an example of more suitable corporategmnce.

® It is notable that in some companies all membétkencollegial body may, due to a very small nunifeminority shareholders, be
elected by the votes of the majority shareholdex faw major shareholders. But even a member ofdhegial body elected by the
majority shareholders may be considered indeperifibatshe meets the independence criteria sahdhe Code.
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shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) of
the company or any associated company and| has
not been such during the last five years;

2) He/she is not an employee of the company or spme
any company and has not been such during| the
last three years, except for cases when a member
of the collegial body does not belong to the senior
management and was elected to the collegial hody
as a representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been not receiying
significant additional remuneration from the
company or associated company other than
remuneration for the office in the collegial body.
Such additional remuneration includes
participation in share options or some other
performance based pay systems; it does |not
include compensation payments for the previpus
office in the company (provided that sugch
payment is no way related with later position)|as
per pension plans (inclusive of deferred
compensations);

4)Hel/she is not a controling shareholder |or
representative of such shareholder (control| as
defined in the Council Directive 83/349/EEC
Article 1 Part 1);

5) He/she does not have and did not have any material
business relations with the company or associated
company within the past year directly or as a
partner, shareholder, director or supetjior
employee of the subject having such relationship.
A subject is considered to have business relatjons
when it is a major supplier or service provider
(inclusive of financial, legal, counseling and
consulting services), major client or organization
receiving significant payments from the company
or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the lasethr
years, partner or employee of the current|or
former external audit company of the company| or
associated company;

7) Helshe is not an executive director or member ef|th
board in some other company where execufive
director of the company or member of the board
(if a collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory boarq) is
non-executive director or member of the
supervisory board, he/she may not also have |any
other material relationships with executiyve




directors of the company that arise from their
participation in activities of other companies |or
bodies;

8) He/she has not been in the position of a member of
the collegial body for over than 12 years;

He/she is not a close relative to an executivectbreor
member of the board (if a collegial body elected thg
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervisogrdjoor
to any person listed in above items 1 to 8. Cladative is
considered to be a spouse (common-law spousejrehi
and parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes indepencd is No The Company has not defined the concept of iedépnce.
fundamentally an issue for the collegial body iftstd
determine. The collegial body may decide that, iesa
particular member meets all the criteria of indefmste
laid down in this Code, he cannot be considdgred

independent due to special personal or companyeck|a

circumstances.

3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the gale No The company has not applied so far the pracicavaluation
body has come to in its determination of whether a of independence of the members of the supervisoayd

particular member of the body should be considéoete
independent should be disclosed. When a person is
nominated to become a member of the collegial btluy,
company should disclose whether it considers thsopeto
be independent. When a particular member of thiegial
body does not meet one or more criteria of indepeoe set
out in this Code, the company should disclosesiésons for|
nevertheless considering the member to be indepénote
addition, the company should annually disclose tvhic
members of the collegial body it considers to |be

independent.
3.10. When one or more criteria of independencesetn No The company has not applied so far the pradi@valuation
this Code has not been met throughout the year,| the of independence of the members of the supervisoayc

company should disclose its reasons for considedng
particular member of the collegial body to be inslegent.
To ensure accuracy of the information disclosedelation
with the independence of the members of the caldgidy,
the company should require independent memberse h
their independence periodically re-confirmed.

3.11. In order to remunerate members of a colldgdly for Not Members of the supervisory board are not remuneriten
their work and participation in the meetings of twlegial | applicable | the Company’s funds for their work and participatio the
body, they may be remunerated from the companyiddfi meetings of the collegial body.

The general shareholders’ meeting should approwe| th
amount of such remuneration.

®1t is notable that currently it is not yet complgtelear, in what form members of the supervisooatd or the board may be
remunerated for their work in these bodies. The bavCompanies of the Republic of Lithuan@fficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574)
provides that members of the supervisory boardembard may be remunerated for their work in tigesvisory board or the board
by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems) in the eraprescribed by Article 59 of this Law, i.e. frafme company’s profit. The
current wording, contrary to the wording effectivefore 1 January 2004, eliminates the exclusiveirement that annual bonuses
(tantiems) should be thanly form of the company’s compensation to members @fstipervisory board or the board. So it seems that
the Law contains no prohibition to remunerate mamloé the supervisory board or the board for terk in other forms, besides
bonuses, although this possibility is not exprestdyed either.



Principle IV: The duties and liabilities of a collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meng

The corporate governance framework should ensure mper and effective functioning of the collegial bog elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to ¢h collegial body should ensure effective monitorifgof the company’s
management bodies and protection of interests oflahe company’s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the general ehalders’
meeting (hereinafter in this Principle referred de the
‘collegial body’) should ensure integrity and trpasency of
the company’s financial statements and the comstystem.
The collegial body should issue recommendationgh&®
company’s management bodies and monitor and cothieg
company’s management performafice.

Yes

The supervisiory board of the Company regularigkes
recommendations to the managing bodies of the Coynpa

4.2. Members of the collegial body should act indj€aith,
with care and responsibility for the benefit and the
interests of the company and its shareholders diib
regard to the interests of employees and publidanel
Independent members of the collegial body shouldider
all circumstances maintain independence of thealyais,
decision-making and actions (b) do not seek andpcany
unjustified privileges that might compromise th
independence, and (c) clearly express their olojest
should a member consider that decision of the giallg
body is against the interests of the company. Shau
collegial body have passed decisions independenthae
has serious doubts about, the member should maquate
conclusions. Should an independent member resign fiis
office, he should explain the reasons in a lettieir@ssed td
the collegial body or audit committee and, if neseeg,
respective company-not-pertaining body (institution

Yes

L

=

To the best knowledge of the Company, all membé the
supervisory board act in a good will in respect tbé
Company, comply with the intrests of the Compamgt those
of third parties) and take efforts to maintain ipeledence in
decision making.

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time
attention to perform his duties as a member ofcthiikegial
body. Each member of the collegial body shouldtliother
professional obligations of his (in particular a
directorships held in other companies) in such amag
they do not interfere with proper performance diekiof a
member of the collegial body. In the event a mendf¢he
collegial body should be present in less than & ludithe
meetings of the collegial body throughout the ficiahyear
of the company, shareholders of the company shbel
notified.

and Yes

ny

Members of the collegial body properly perfdira functions
delegated to them: actively participate at theingjttof the
collegial body and devote sufficient time for therformance
of their duties as the members of the supervisoaydh

4.4. Where decisions of a collegial body may havg
different effect on the company’s shareholders,cibigegial
body should treat all shareholders impartially &aidy. It
should ensure that shareholders are properly irddrion

> a Yes

the company’'s affairs, strategies, risk managensmd

The collegial body treat all shareholders faieand unbiased
manner.

" See Footnote 3.

8 See Footnote 3. In the event the collegial bodyctetl by the general shareholders’ meeting is therdp it should provide
recommendations to the company'’s single-person bbdyanagement, i.e. the company’s chief executffieer.
® It is notable that companies can make this requére more stringent and provide that shareholdesald be informed about failure

to participate at the meetings of the collegialybidfor instance, a member of the collegial bgyticipated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of
the meetings. Such measures, which ensure actitieipation in the meetings of the collegial bodye encouraged and will constitute

an example of more suitable corporate governance.



resolution of conflicts of interest. The companysld have
a clearly established role of members of the ca@leigody
when communicating with and committing to sharebodd

45. It is recommended that transactions (exd
insignificant ones due to their low value or comlgd when
carrying out routine operations in the company undwial
conditions), concluded between the company and
shareholders, members of the supervisory or magaq
bodies or other natural or legal persons that ecxemay
exert influence on the company’'s management shbal
subject to approval of the collegial body. The diexi
concerning approval of such transactions shoulddmmed
adopted only provided the majority of the independ
members of the collegial body voted for such asieni

ept Yes

its
n

g

o)

Transactions between the Company and its shldesl,
members of the supervisory or managing bodies berg
natural or legal persons that exert or may exdlténce on
the Company’s management are concluded and appiiov
accordance with the Lithuanian legislation and Alnécles of
the Association.

ed

4.6. The collegial body should be independent issjay
decisions that are significant for the company’&ragions
and strategy. Taken separately, the collegial =bdyuld be
independent of the company’s management b3t
Members of the collegial body should act and passstbns
without an outside influence from the persons wiaweh
elected it. Companies should ensure that the dallégpdy
and its committees are provided with sufficie
administrative and financial resources to dischatfyer

duties, including the right to obtain, in partiaulrom

employees of the company, all the necessary infliomar

to seek independent legal, accounting or any attieice on
issues pertaining to the competence of the collegidy

and its committees.

Yes

£S

nt

There have been no restrictions for the superyiboard to
receive all information they need to perform trahities. The
collegial body is independent in making decisiopartant for
the activities and strategy of the Company.

4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be anjged in a
manner that independent members of the collegiayh
could have major influence in relevant areas wich@nces
of occurrence of conflicts of interest are veryhiguch
areas to be considered as highly relevant are dssii¢
nomination of company’s directors, determination

directors’ remuneration and control and assessnugn
company’s audit. Therefore when the mentioned ssue
attributable to the competence of the collegial yhatl is

recommended that the collegial body should estal
nomination, remuneration, and audit committe
Companies should ensure that the functions atailetto
the nomination, remuneration, and audit committaes
carried out. However they may decide to merge th
functions and set up less than three committeesudh case
a company should explain in detail reasons behhwel
selection of alternative approach and how the &udel
approach complies with the objectives set forthtfier three
different committees. Should the collegial body tbke
company comprise small number of members, the iomet

No

h

of
it

S

ese

—

assigned to the three committees may be perforngettieh

No nomination, remuneration and audit committesge been
formed in the Company so far. Nonetheless, the neesnbf
the supervisory board have major influence in r@tg\aspects
of the Company'’s activity, control the managemeward and
head of the Company, offer the suggestions forr thregided
decisions.

9 In the event the collegial body elected by theegahshareholders’ meeting is the board, the recemdation concerning its
independence from the company’s management bogigies to the extent it relates to the independdrama the company’s chief

executive officer.



collegial body itself, provided that it meets corspion
requirements advocated for the committees and

adequate information is provided in this respest.suich
case provisions of this Code relating to the cortaed of
the collegial body (in particular with respect teeir role,
operation, and transparency) should apply, whelevaet,
to the collegial body as a whole.

that

4.8. The key objective of the committees is to éase
efficiency of the activities of the collegial bodly ensuring
that decisions are based on due considerationtamelp
organize its work with a view to ensuring that thexisions
it takes are free of material conflicts of inter&@dmmittees
should present the collegial body with recommeoheti
concerning the decisions of the collegial body. &ttheless
the final decision shall be adopted by the collegiady.

The recommendation on creation of committees is
intended, in principle, to constrict the competendéethe
collegial body or to remove the matters considérech the
purview of the collegial body itself, which remaiffgly

responsible for the decisions taken in its field

competence.

No

not

of

No committees have been formed in the Comparigirso

4.9. Committees established by the collegial bdayukl
normally be composed of at least three members. In
companies with small number of members of the galle
body, they could exceptionally be composed of two
members. Majority of the members of each committee
should be constituted from independent memberseof t
collegial body. In cases when the company choose®n
set up a supervisory board, remuneration and audit
committees should be entirely comprised of non-ettee
directors. Chairmanship and membership of the cdtees
should be decided with due regard to the needgorerthat
committee membership is refreshed and that undizece
is not placed on particular individuals.

No

No committees have been formed in the Comparigirso

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should
determined by the collegial body. Committees shd
perform their duties in line with authority delegdtto them
and inform the collegial body on their activitiesdal
performance on regular basis. Authority of evergnouttee
stipulating the role and rights and duties of teenmittee
should be made public at least once a year (asobdhe

information disclosed by the company annually os |i

corporate governance structures and practices).p@oies
should also make public annually a statement bgtiexgj
committees on their composition, number of meetiand
attendance over the year, and their main activithaslit
committee should confirm that it is satisfied withe
independence of the audit process and describéybtfie
actions it has taken to reach this conclusion.

be No
uld

=3

No committees have been formed in the Comparfgrso

4.11. In order to ensure independence and impéytafithe
committees, members of the collegial body thanate
members of the committee should commonly havetd tay

No

participate in the meetings of the committee ofigvited

No committees have been formed in the Comparfgrso




by the committee. A committee may invite or demand
participation in the meeting of particular officensexperts.
Chairman of each of the committees should have a
possibility to maintain direct communication witret
shareholders. Events when such are to be perfoshadd
be specified in the regulations for committee aiiés.

4.12. Nomination Committee.
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination committémwdd
be the following:

« Identify and recommend, for the approval of tiodlegial

body, candidates to fill board vacancies. The nauim

committee should evaluate the balance of skillewkadge
and experience on the management body, prepa
description of the roles and capabilities requicedssume g
particular office, and assess the time commitmepeeted.
Nomination committee can also consider candidates
members of the collegial body delegated by theedi@ders
of the company;

¢ Assess on regular basis the structure, size, ositipn

and performance of the supervisory and management

bodies, and make recommendations to the collegidly
regarding the means of achieving necessary changes;

e Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge
experience of individual directors and report ois tio the
collegial body;

« Properly consider issues related to successemmpig;

* Review the policy of the management bodies fteci®on
and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2. Nomination committee should consider prajsoby
other parties, including management and sharehsl
When dealing with issues related to executive trscor
members of the board (if a collegial body electedtie
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervisoard)cand
senior management, chief executive officer of thmpgany
should be consulted by, and entitled to submit psafs to
the nomination committee.

and

er

No

No committees have been formed in the Comparfgirso

4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration commitheuld
be the following:

« Make proposals, for the approval of the collepiatly, on
the remuneration policy for members of managemedids
and executive directors. Such policy should addrabs
forms of compensation, including the fixed remutiera

performance-based remuneration  schemes, pension

arrangements, and termination payments. Propg
considering performance-based remuneration sche
should be accompanied with recommendations on
related objectives and evaluation criteria, withview to
properly aligning the pay of executive director anembers
of the management bodies with the long-term intsre$
the shareholders and the objectives set by thegiallbody;
* Make proposals to the collegial body on the idial
remuneration for executive directors and member
management bodies in order their remunerations
consistent with company’s remuneration policy ame
evaluation of the performance of these personsesoed.
In doing so, the committee should be properly imfed on
the total compensation obtained by executive dirscand
members of the management bodies from the affiig
companies;

* Make proposals to the collegial body on suitdblens of

sals
mes
the

of
are

ate

contracts for executive directors and members &

No

No committees have been formed in the Comparfgirso
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management bodies;

« Assist the collegial body in overseeing how tlenpany
complies with applicable provisions regarding {
remuneration-related information disclosure (in tigatar
the remuneration policy applied and individd
remuneration of directors);

« Make general recommendations to the executivecttirs
and members of the management bodies on the lexe
structure of remuneration for senior managemendé¢éised
by the collegial body) with regard to the respezt]
information provided by the executive directors g
members of the management bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and othereshbased
incentives which may be granted to directors oreol
employees, the committee should:

¢ Consider general policy regarding the granting tloé
above mentioned schemes, in particular stock optiand
make any related proposals to the collegial body;

« Examine the related information that is given the
company’s annual report and documents intendedHher
use during the shareholders meeting;

« Make proposals to the collegial body regarding ¢hoice
between granting options to subscribe shares antigta
options to purchase shares, specifying the reatamgs
choice as well as the consequences that this chake
4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributatalethe
competence of the remuneration committee, the céteen
should at least address the chairman of the calldmdy
and/or chief executive officer of the company fbreit
opinion on the remuneration of other executive aoes or
members of the management bodies.

al

4.14. Audit Committee.

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee shooddthe
following:

« Observe the integrity of the financial informatiprovided
by the company, in particular by reviewing the velece
and consistency of the accounting methods usedhby
company and its group (including the criteria fdre t
consolidation of the accounts of companies in tioei);

At least once a year review the systems of irtiecontrol
and risk management to ensure that the key riskdu@ive
of the risks in relation with compliance with exigt laws
and regulations) are properly identified, managed
reflected in the information provided;

« Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit fuonrt among
other things, by making recommendations on thectelg
appointment, reappointment and removal of the todate
internal audit department and on the budget of
department, and by monitoring the responsivenesth®f
management to its findings and recommendationsul8h
there be no internal audit authority in the compahg need
for one should be reviewed at least annually;

* Make recommendations to the collegial body relatéth
selection, appointment, reappointment and remo¥ahe
external auditor (to be done by the general shédehs
meeting) and with the terms and conditions of
engagement. The committee should investigate gins
that lead to a resignation of the audit companyuwditor
and make recommendations on required actions it
situations;

¢ Monitor independence and impartiality of the emsd
auditor, in particular by reviewing the audit compa
compliance with applicable guidance relating to ribation
of audit partners, the level of fees paid by thepany, and

No

the

=3

S

sUC

similar issues. In order to prevent occurrence atemal

No committees have been formed in the Comparigirso
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conflicts of interest, the committee, based on ahditor’s
disclosed inter alia data on all remunerations gaidthe
company to the auditor and network, should at iatles
monitor nature and extent of the non-audit serviets/ing
regard to the principals and guidelines establishetie 16
May 2002 Commission Recommendation 2002/590/EC,
committee should determine and apply a formal o
establishing types of non-audit services that azg
excluded, (b) permissible only after review by {
committee, and (c) permissible without referral tte
committee;

* Review efficiency of the external audit processd g
responsiveness of management to recommendatiors img
the external auditor's management letter.

4.14.2. Al members of the committee should be ifiived
with complete information on particulars of accdingf
financial and other operations of the company. Camygjs
management should inform the audit committee of
methods used to account for significant and unu
transactions where the accounting treatment magpbe to
different approaches. In such case a special ceraidn
should be given to company’s operations in offstuaneters
and/or activities carried out through special psgeehicles
(organizations) and justification of such operagion

4.14.3. The audit committee should decide whe
participation of the chairman of the collegial bpaief
executive officer of the company, chief financifficer (or
superior employees in charge of finances, treasmg
accounting), or internal and external auditors ime
meetings of the committee is required (if requirethen).

The committee should be entitled, when needed, ¢etim

with any relevant person without executive direstand
members of the management bodies present.

4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should loeirgsl with
not only effective working relationship with managent,
but also with free access to the collegial bodyr fuos
purpose the audit committee should act as the ipah
contact person for the internal and external atslito

4.14.5. The audit committee should be informed Ioé
internal auditor’s work program, and should be ised
with internal audit's reports or periodic summaridhe
audit committee should also be informed of the w
program of the external auditor and should be &imedl
with report disclosing all relationships betweene
independent auditor and the company and its grdie.
committee should be timely furnished information alh
issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine whether
company is following applicable provisions regardithe
possibility for employees to report alleged sigrafit
irregularities in the company, by way of complairds
through anonymous submissions (normally to
independent member of the collegial body), and kh
ensure that there is a procedure established époptionate
and independent investigation of these issues amd
appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit committee should report on its/éies to
the collegial body at least once in every six mentt the
time the yearly and half-yearly statements are a.

—

he
ic

he

ad

the
sual

her

it

—

prk

an
DU

4.15. Every year the collegial body should condthe

No

Such practice has not been applied in thregaay.

12




assessment of its activities. The assessment slivoellcie
evaluation of collegial body’s structure, work omgaation
and ability to act as a group, evaluation of eathhe
collegial body member’'s and committee’s competesice
work efficiency and assessment whether the colldmpdy
has achieved its objectives. The collegial bodyukhoat
least once a year, make public (as part of themnimdtion the
company annually discloses on its management stes
and practices) respective information on its irdén
organization and working procedures, and specifyatv
material changes were made as a result of thesmssat of
the collegial body of its own activities.

L

5 5

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’scollegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and managemertbodies established in the company should ensurdiefent operation of these
bodies and decision-making and encourage active operation between the company’s bodies.

5.1. The company’s supervisory and management §g
(hereinafter in this Principle the concept ‘collgbodies’
covers both the collegial bodies of supervision dhd
collegial bodies of management) should be chairgd
chairpersons of these bodies. The chairpersoncoflagial
body is responsible for proper convocation of tbéegial
body meetings. The chairperson should ensure

information about the meeting being convened arsd
agenda are communicated to all members of the by,
chairperson of a collegial body should ensure gmpte

conducting of the meetings of the collegial bodyheT

chairperson should ensure order and working atnmerep
during the meeting.

die Yes

that

The Company fully complies with these recomnagiods.

5.2. It is recommended that meetings of the compa
collegial bodies should be carried out accordingthe
schedule approved in advance at certain intervakine.
Each company is free to decide how often to conv
meetings of the collegial bodies, but it is recomde that
these meetings should be convened at such intewhish
would guarantee an interrupted resolution of theeetal
corporate governance issues. Meetings of the coyypa
supervisory board should be convened at least amae
quarter, and the company’s board should meet at teece
a montH*,

ny Yes

ene

AN

Sittings of the collegial bodies if the Compang held at such

intevals as are necessary to guarantee an unipted
resolution of the essential corporate governarseses.
Meetings of the company’s supervisory board arevepted at
least once in a quarter, and company’s board neeltsast
once a month.

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notifezbut
the meeting being convened in advance in orderltoval
sufficient time for proper preparation for the isswon the
agenda of the meeting and to ensure fruitful discusand
adoption of appropriate decisions. Alongside witd hotice
about the meeting being convened, all the docum
relevant to the issues on the agenda of the mestiogld be
submitted to the members of the collegial body. &benda

Yes

ents

The Company fully complies with these recomnagiods.
Both the metting of the supervisory’s board andrtieeting of
the management’'s board goes according to the ag
approved in advance.

Members of the collegial bodies are notified on s$iténg in
advance. Alongside with the notice about the mgekiaing
convented, all the documents relevant to the issueshe
agenda of the meeting are submitted to the memifetse

enda

Y The frequency of meetings of the collegial bodgvided for in the recommendation must be appliethisse cases when both
additional collegial bodies are formed at the conypahe board and the supervisory board. In theteesly one additional collegial
body is formed in the company, the frequency ofntsetings may be as established for the supervizoayd, i.e. at least once in a

quarter.
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of the meeting should not be changed or supplerdente
during the meeting, unless all members of the ga@ledbody
are present or certain issues of great importanc¢he
company require immediate resolution.

collegial body.

5.4. In order to co-ordinate operation of the comyps
collegial bodies and ensure effective decision-mak
process, chairpersons of the company's collegidie®oof
supervision and management should closely co-opdrat
co-coordinating dates of the meetings, their agenated
resolving other issues of corporate governance. béesof
the company’s board should be free to attend ngetof
the company’s supervisory board, especially wheseids
concerning removal of the board members, theiiilitgtor

remuneration are discussed.

Yes

The chairpersons of the collegial supervisoy managemen|
bodies of the Company positively co-operate by luésg the
issues of the corporate governance.

t

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholdes and shareholder rights

The corporate governance framework should ensure thequitable treatment of all shareholders, includig minority and foreign
shareholders. The corporate governance framework stuld protect the rights of the shareholders.

6.1. It is recommended that the company’s capiaiukl Yes The authorized capital of the Company consaftsLTL
consist only of the shares that grant the sametsrigh 145 800 689 and is comprised of 145 800 689 ordil
voting, ownership, dividend and other rights to thieir shares. The par value of one share is LTL 1.

holders. All shareholders of the Company enjoy equal rights.
6.2. It is recommended that investors should haeess to Yes The Company fully complies with these recomnagiods.

the information concerning the rights attachedn $hareg

of the new issue or those issued earlier in advanee

before they purchase shares.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the company its No | accoradance with the Lithuanian legislationl &me Articles
shareholders, such as transfer, investment, anigplef the of the Association, the transactions that are ifgmirto the
company’s assets or any other type of encumbramoeld Company such as transfer, investment, and pfledgthe
be subject to approval of the general shareholders’ company’s assets or any other type of encumbramcsubject
meeting*? All shareholders should be furnished with eqpal to approval of the management board.

opportunity to familiarize with and participate ithe

decision-making process when significant corpoissees,

including approval of transactions referred to ahosre

discussed.

6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a gémer Yes The Company fully complies with these recomnagiods.

shareholders’ meeting should ensure equal opptigarfor
the shareholders to effectively participate at theetings
and should not prejudice the rights and interestshe
shareholders. The venue, date, and time of thekbklers’
meeting should not hinder wide attendance of [the
shareholders. Prior to the shareholders’ meetire |t
company’s supervisory and management bodies sHould
enable the shareholders to lodge questions onsissu¢he

na

Procedures of the convening and conducting a genera

shareholders’ meeting ensure equal opportunities tfe
shareholders to effectively participate at the nest and do|
not violate their rights and interests.

Notice of convening a general shareholders’ meeting
published in the Lietuvos rytas daily. This Inforina is also
disclosed through the Company News Service (CNShef|

Vilnius Stock Exchange.

2 The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithugi@4ficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolutimmeerning
the investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or aitigmisof the long-terms assets accounting for mitv@n 1/20 of the company’'s
authorised capital to the competence of the gesbakholders’ meeting. However, transactionsataimportant and material for the
company’s activity should be considered and apmtdwe the general shareholders’ meeting. The LawCompanies contains no
prohibition to this effect either. Yet, in order tnto encumber the company’'s activity and escapeumreasonably frequent
consideration of transactions at the meetings, eomes are free to establish their own criteria afterial transactions, which are
subject to the approval of the meeting. While digthimg these criteria of material transactionanpanies may follow the criteria set
out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Aeti8#t of the Law on Companies or derogate from timewew of the specific nature of
their operation and their attempt to ensure unianpted, efficient functioning of the company.
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agenda of the general shareholders’ meeting aneivee¢
answers to them.

6.5. It is recommended that documents on the caofrize Yes
general shareholders’ meeting, including draft lkggms of
the meeting, should be placed on the publicly asibks
website of the company in advafitelt is recommendeq
that the minutes of the general shareholders’ megedfter
signing them and/or adopted resolutions should Ise [a
placed on the publicly accessible website of theagamy.
Seeking to ensure the right of foreigners to faariie with
the information, whenever feasible, documents reéeto in
this recommendation should be published in Englist¥or
other foreign languages. Documents referred to his |t
recommendation may be published on the publjcly
accessible website of the company to the extent |tha
publishing of these documents is not detrimentalthe
company or the company’s commercial secrets are| not
revealed.

At least 10 days before the general meeting, dhnaft
resolution of the meeting is published through @@mpany
News Service of the Vilnius Stoch Exchange.

Before the meeting all shareholders are provided
opportunity to familiarize with all information abbthe draft
resolution of the general meeting.

The adopted resolutions are published also throlugICNS.
The information is published in Lithuanian and Esigl
languages.

The Company has not so far the technical oppostutot
disclose this information on the webside of the @any. The
Company is going to do it in the future.

6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with the dppiy Yes
to vote in the general shareholders’ meeting isq@eind in
absentia. Shareholders should not be prevented \fotimg
in writing in advance by completing the generalivgt
ballot.

Shareholders of the Company may exercise ttgit to
attend the general meeting of shareholders peigomal
trough a proxy. Also, the shareholders of the Cawipaay
vote by filling in common ballot-papers.

6.7. With a view to increasing the shareholders’ Not

opportunities to participate effectively at shatdeleos’ | applicable
meetings, the companies are recommended to expandfli
modern technologies in voting processes by allowtimg
shareholders to vote in general meetings via tehiin
equipment of telecommunications. In such casesrisg@i
telecommunication equipment, text protection and| a
possibility to identify the signature of the votirmerson
should be guaranteed. Moreover, companies couldstuf
its shareholders, especially foreigners, with tppastunity
to watch shareholder meetings by means of modern
technologies.

Based on current practice of the Company, therebkas no
need so far to comply with this recommendation.

Principle VII: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encouragmembers of the corporate bodies to avoid conflictsf interest and assure
transparent and effective mechanism of disclosuref @onflicts of interest regarding members of the aporate bodies.

7.1. Any member of the company's supervisory Jind Yes
management body should avoid a situation, in whisther
personal interests are in conflict or may be inflacinwith

the company’s interests. In case such a situaioatur, a
member of the company’s supervisory and management
body should, within reasonable time, inform othemmbers
of the same collegial body or the company’s bodt tias
elected him/her, or to the company’s shareholdbmitaa
situation of a conflict of interest, indicate thature of the

The Company fully complies with these recomnagiods.
The most of the members of the collegial bodiesthe pulic
officials.

an

13 The documents referred to above should be planetiecompany’s website in advance with due regmia 10-day period before

the general shareholders’ meeting, determined iaguaph 7 of Article 26 of the Law on Companiestted Republic of Lithuania

(Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574).
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conflict and value, where possible.

7.2. Any member of the company's supervisory &
management body may not mix the company’s asdats
use of which has not been mutually agreed uponh

his/her personal assets or use them or the infasmathich

he/she learns by virtue of his/her position as anber of a
corporate body for his/her personal benefit ortfar benefit
of any third person without a prior agreement & ¢feneral
shareholders’ meeting or any other corporate b
authorized by the meeting.

and  Yes
, t
Wit

ody

7.3. Any member of the company's supervisory &
management body may conclude a transaction with
company, a member of a corporate body of whichhieeis.
Such a transaction (except insignificant ones du¢heir
low value or concluded when carrying out routi
operations in the company under usual conditions3trbe
immediately reported in writing or orally, by redang this
in the minutes of the meeting, to other memberthefsame
corporate body or to the corporate body that hastedl
him/her or to the company’s shareholders. Transasf
specified in this recommendation are also subjert
recommendation 4.5.

and  Yes
the

7.4. Any member of the company's supervisory &
management body should abstain from voting wi
decisions concerning transactions or other isstipersonal
or business interest are voted on.

and  Yes
hen

The members of the collegial bodies are faamded with
these provisions and must fully comply these recenmation.

Principle VIII: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revsion and disclosure of directors’ remuneration estblished in the company
should prevent potential conflicts of interest andabuse in determining remuneration of directors, inaddition it should ensure
publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneation policy and remuneration of directors.

8.1. A company should make a public statement ef
company’s  remuneration policy (hereinafter
remuneration statement). This statement shouldévt qi
the company’s annual accounts. Remuneration state
should also be posted on the company’s website.

th  No
he

me

Such practice has not been apllied in the Comparfar.

8.2. Remuneration statement should mainly focus
directors’ remuneration policy for the followingareand, if
appropriate, the subsequent years. The statementlds
contain a summary of the implementation of
remuneration policy in the previous financial ye@pecial
attention should be given to any significant change
company’s remuneration policy as compared to tegipus
financial year.

on No

he

See commentary under item 8.1.

8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise ieching
following information:

« Explanation of the relative importance of theiable and
non-variable components of directors’ remuneration;

« Sufficient information on performance criteriattentitles
directors to share options, shares or variable compts of
remuneration;

No

he

» Sufficient information on the linkage between f{

See commentary under item 8.1.
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remuneration and performance;

« The main parameters and rationale for any anbhaals
scheme and any other non-cash benefits;

« A description of the main characteristics of depgentary
pension or early retirement schemes for directors.

8.4. Remuneration statement should also summairze
explain company’s policy regarding the terms of

contracts executed with executive directors and begmof
the management bodies. It should include, intes, g
information on the duration of contracts with ex@&cel
directors and members of the management bodies,
applicable notice periods and details of provisidos
termination payments linked to early terminationdein
contracts for executive directors and members o
management bodies.

a No

al

the

8.5. The information on preparatory and decisioking
processes, during which a policy of remuneration
directors is being established, should also belatied.
Information should include data, if applicable,arthorities
and composition of the remuneration committee, reaamal
surnames of external consultants whose services bagn
used in determination of the remuneration policyvad as
the role of shareholders’ annual general meeting.

of

See commentary under item 8.1.

8.6. Without prejudice to the role and organizatainthe
relevant bodies responsible for setting directg
remunerations, the remuneration policy or any ot
significant change in remuneration policy should

included into the agenda of the shareholders’ dnyergeral
meeting. Remuneration statement should be put dting
in shareholders’ annual general meeting. The vaig be
either mandatory or advisory.

See commentary under item 8.1.

8.7. Remuneration statement should also contaailedt
information on the entire amount of remuneratiojusive
of other benefits, that was paid to individual dtces over
the relevant financial year. This document shoisidat
least the information set out in items 8.7.1 ta8fér each
person who has served as a director of the comgiaanyy
time during the relevant financial year.

8.7.1. The following remuneration and/or emoluments
related information should be disclosed:

« The total amount of remuneration paid or duéhto t
director for services performed during the releviargncial
year, inclusive of, where relevant, attendance figes by
the annual general shareholders meeting;

« The remuneration and advantages received from any
undertaking belonging to the same group;

« The remuneration paid in the form of profit shgrand/or
bonus payments and the reasons why such bonus peym
and/or profit sharing were granted;

« If permissible by the law, any significant addital
remuneration paid to directors for special servimgside
the scope of the usual functions of a director;

« Compensation receivable or paid to each formecuatve
director or member of the management body as dt i@fsu
his resignation from the office during the previdusincial
year;

« Total estimated value of non-cash benefits casid as
remuneration, other than the items covered in bioze

No

points.

See commentary under item 8.1.
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8.7.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acghaees
options and/or all other share-incentive schentes, t
following information should be disclosed:

« The number of share options offered or sharestgtaby
the company during the relevant financial year e
conditions of application;

« The number of shares options exercised duringefeyant
financial year and, for each of them, the numbeshafres
involved and the exercise price or the value ofittiterest in
the share incentive scheme at the end of the fiabyear;

« The number of share options unexercised at tHeoéthe
financial year; their exercise price, the exerdate and the
main conditions for the exercise of the rights;

« All changes in the terms and conditions of erggtshare
options occurring during the financial year.

8.7.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-
related information should be disclosed:

« When the pension scheme is a defined-benefinsehe
changes in the directors’ accrued benefits unddrdbheme
during the relevant financial year;

* When the pension scheme is defined-contributabhrese,
detailed information on contributions paid or pagdty the
company in respect of that director during thevate
financial year.

8.7.4. The statement should also state amountshiat
company or any subsidiary company or entity inctliche
the consolidated annual financial statements ottmepany
has paid to each person who has served as a dine¢he
company at any time during the relevant financenin
the form of loans, advance payments or guarantees,
including the amount outstanding and the interatst r

8.8. Schemes anticipating remuneration of diredtors
shares, share options or any other right to puechhares o
be remunerated on the basis of share price movement
should be subject to the prior approval of shamdrs!
annual general meeting by way of a resolution gaodheir
adoption. The approval of scheme should be relattdthe
scheme itself and not to the grant of such shasea
benefits under that scheme to individual directais.
significant changes in scheme provisions should la¢s
subject to shareholders’ approval prior to thewgibn; the
approval decision should be made in shareholdersia
general meeting. In such case shareholders sheuld b
notified on all terms of suggested changes andget
explanation on the impact of the suggested changes.

8.9. The following issues should be subject to apalrby
the shareholders’ annual general meeting:

¢ Grant of share-based schemes, including shaienspto
directors;

« Determination of maximum number of shares anchmai
conditions of share granting;

« The term within which options can be exercised;

« The conditions for any subsequent change in tkecese
of the options, if permissible by law;

« All other long-term incentive schemes for whighredtors
are eligible and which are not available to othapkyees
of the company under similar terms. Annual general
meeting should also set the deadline within whighiody

Not
applicable

Such practice has not been apllied in the Comparigirs
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responsible for remuneration of directors may award
compensations listed in this article to individdakctors.

8.10. Should national law or company'’s Articles of
Association allow, any discounted option arrangemeder
which any rights are granted to subscribe to shatrasprice
lower than the market value of the share prevaiinghe
day of the price determination, or the averagdefharket
values over a number of days preceding the date Wiee
exercise price is determined, should also be sttgebe
shareholders’ approval.

8.11. Provisions of Articles 8.8 and 8.9 should et
applicable to schemes allowing for participationien
similar conditions to company’s employees or emp&s/of
any subsidiary company whose employees are eliggble
participate in the scheme and which has been apgriov
the shareholders’ annual general meeting.

8.12. Prior to the annual general meeting thattisnded to
consider decision stipulated in Article 8.8, thargtolders
must be provided an opportunity to familiarize wdhaft
resolution and project-related notice (the docusietiould
be posted on the company’s website). The noticaildh
contain the full text of the share-based remunemna
schemes or a description of their key terms, a$ agefull
names of the participants in the schemes. Notioaldralso
specify the relationship of the schemes and therativ
remuneration policy of the directors. Draft resmotmust
have a clear reference to the scheme itself drestmmary|
of its key terms. Shareholders must also be predewith
information on how the company intends to providethe
shares required to meet its obligations under itoen
schemes. It should be clearly stated whether tmepaay
intends to buy shares in the market, hold the shameg
reserve or issue new ones. There should also benmnary
on scheme-related expenses the company will sdiferto
the anticipated application of the scheme. All infation
given in this article must be posted on the comfsl
website.

ti

1

y

Principle IX: The role of stakeholders in corporategovernance

The corporate governance framework should recogniz#he rights of stakeholders as established by lawnd encourage active co-
operation between companies and stakeholders in @gng the company value, jobs and financial sustaability. For the purposes of
this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” includesnvestors, employees, creditors, suppliers, cliesitlocal community and other

persons having certain interest in the company coreecned.

9.1. The corporate governance framework shouldragkat
the rights of stakeholders that are protected by e
respected.

9.2. The corporate governance framework shouldter
conditions for the stakeholders to participate amporate
governance in the manner prescribed by law. Exasnple
mechanisms of stakeholder participation in corgo

ea

at

governance include: employee participation in adopof

Yes

The Company complies with all statutory requieats aimed
at ensuring the rights of interest holders.

19



certain key decisions for the company; consultimg |t
employees on corporate governance and other imgofrta
issues; employee participation in the company’sresha
capital; creditor involvement in governance in tioatext of
the company'’s insolvency, etc.

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corporat
governance process, they should have access teamele
information.

Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure #t timely and accurate disclosure is made on all nterial information
regarding the company, including the financial sitation, performance and governance of the company.

10.1. The company should disclose information on:

« The financial and operating results of the congpan

« Company objectives;

« Persons holding by the right of ownership or amtcol of
a block of shares in the company;

* Members of the company’s supervisory and manageme
bodies, chief executive officer of the company dhdir
remuneration;

» Material foreseeable risk factors;

« Transactions between the company and connectsds
as well as transactions concluded outside the eooirshe
company’s regular operations;

¢ Material issues regarding employees and other
stakeholders;

» Governance structures and strategy.

This list should be deemed as a minimum recommenrdat
while the companies are encouraged not to limitndeves
to disclosure of the information specified in tiss.

10.2. It is recommended that consolidated resultshe
whole group to which the company belongs should| be
disclosed when information specified in item 1 |of
Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on thefgssional
background, qualifications of the members of suisery
and management bodies, chief executive officer hef
company should be disclosed as well as potentiaflicts
of interest that may have an effect on their deosiwhen
information specified in item 4 of Recommendatioh 11
about the members of the company’s supervisory |and
management bodies is under disclosure. It is also
recommended that information about the amount| of
remuneration received from the company and otheyne
should be disclosed with regard to members of |the
company’s supervisory and management bodies aref chi
executive officer as per Principle VIII.

—

10.4. It is recommended that information about lihks
between the company and its stakeholders, including
employees, creditors, suppliers, local communisyywell as
the company’s policy with regard to human resources
employee participation schemes in the company'sesha
capital, etc. should be disclosed when informasipacified
in item 7 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclesur

Yes

The Company fully complies with these recomnagiods.

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a Wt
neither shareholders nor investors are discriméhatéth

Yes

The Company publishes information through tifermation
system of the Vilnius Stock Exchange in Lithuaniand

20




regard to the manner or scope of access to infamat
Information should be disclosed to all simultanépult is
recommended that notices about material eventsldhmm
announced before or after a trading session orVilméus
Stock Exchange, so that all the company’s sharehsldnd
investors should have equal access to the infoomatnd
make informed investing decisions.

English simultaneously. The Company, if possiblgblizhes
its information prior to or after trade session tbe Vilnius
Stock Exchange.

The Company does not publish in commentaries,vigas or
otherwise any information, until such informatiors
announced through the CNS of the Vilnius Stock Bxgfe.

10.6. Channels for disseminating information should Yes The Company, if possible, publishes informatiorough the
provide for fair, timely and cost-efficient accdesrelevant information system of the Vilnius Stock Exchange
information by users. It is recommended that infation Lithuanian and English simultaneously.

technologies should be employed for wider dissetitnaf The Company has not so far the technical oppostutot
information, for instance, by placing the infornaation the disclose this information on the webside of the @any. The
company’s website. It is recommended that inforaomati Company is going to do it in the future.

should be published and placed on the company’ssiteep

not only in Lithuanian, but also in English, anchemever

possible and necessary, in other languages as well.

10.7. It is recommended that the company’s anrebnts No The Company has not so far the technical oppiytuto

and other periodical accounts prepared by the cognpa
should be placed on the company’'s website. It| is
recommended that the company should annoynce
information about material events and changes énpitice
of the company’s shares on the Stock Exchange en th
company’s website too.

disclose this information on the webside of the @any. The
Company is going to do it in the future.

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s audito

The mechanism of the selection of the company’s amor should ensure independence of the firm of auddr's conclusion and

opinion.

11.1. An annual audit of the company’s financiakasments Yes An annual audit of the Company’s financial etatents ang

and report should be conducted by an independent df report is conducted by an independet firm of audito

auditors in order to provide an external and objec

opinion on the company’s financial statements.

11.2. It is recommended that the company’s supenyis No Primarily a tender for selection of the firm atiditors is

board and, where it is not set up, the company'ardo conducted in accordance with the requirements plest by

should propose a candidate firm of auditors todheeral laws regulating public procurements. Following #edection

shareholders’ meeting. of the firm of auditors, a candidate firm of aud#tds proposed
to the general meeting of shareholders.

11.3. It is recommended that the company shouliatie to Not The firm of auditors has not provides any non-ardservices

its shareholders the level of fees paid to the fifrauditors| applicable | to the Company and has not received any fees therem

for non-audit services rendered to the company.s Thi the Company.

information should be also known to the company’'s

supervisory board and, where it is not formed, the

company’s board upon their consideration which fiofn

auditors to propose for the general shareholdeegtimg.
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AUDITAS

APSKAITOS IR KONTROLES UZDAROJI AKCINE BENDROVE “AUDITAS”

Imonés kodas 120612714 Gedimino pr. 24-11, 01103 Vilnius Tel. (5) 261 97 72 Faks. (5)212 16 72 El.pastas audito@takas.lt www.audito.lt
Ats. saskaita LT50 7044 0600 0116 0676 AB SEB Vilniaus bankas Banko kodas 70440 PVM m/k LT206127113

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of Lietuvos Elektriné AB

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lietuvos Elektriné AB as of 31 December 2006,
comprising the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The financial
statements of Lietuvos Elektriné AB have been drawn up in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted for use in the EU.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Management is also responsible for selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risks assessments. the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair representation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects. the financial position
of Lietuvos Elektriné AB as of 31 December 2006 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the EU.

Furthermore, we have read the Annual Report of Lietuvos Elektriné AB for the year ended 31 December 2006.
Our work with respect to the Annual Report was limited to checking it against the financial statements and
excluded any management estimates, operational plans and forecasts. In the Annual Report 2006 presented by
Lietuvos Elektriné AB, we have not identified any material inconsistencies with the accompanying financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2006.

/
\ —

Risardas Krinickis, Director & Auditor ;f =T
Auditor’s Certificate No. 000136 P S
Alma Lizunova, Auditor 0{4‘;},
Auditor’s Certificate No. 000152 ¢
2 April 2007
Vilnius

Accounting and audit company Auditas UAB
Gedimino pr. 24-11, LT-01103, Vilnius
Audit Firm Certificate No. 001234



Audit Report on public company Lietuvos Elektring financial statements 2006

AUDIT REPORT
on public company Lietuvos Elektriné financial statments 2006

L BACKGROUND

We have audited the financial statements of public company Lietuvos Elektriné (hereinafter referred
to as “Lietuvos Elekiriné AB” or “the entity”) as of 31 December 2006 prepared according to International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the EU and the Annual Report 2006 accompanying these
financial statements. Management is responsible for these financial statements and Annual Report. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to evaluate if
information presented in the Annual Report is consisted with financial statements.

The Audit Report deals exclusively with such material matters as identified during our audit and
discusses matters important for management or supervision of the entity as determined during audit. In
planning and performing the audit of financial statements, we do not aim to identify all matters important for
management or supervision of the entity and, usually, all such matters are not identified during audit.

This Audit Report is intended solely for the use of Lietuvos Elektriné AB and its shareholders and
may not be used otherwise. This Report may not be made available to any third party without prior written
consent of the accounting and audit company Auditas UAB, except where the audit report must be made

available as required by laws of the Republic of Lithuania.

IL SCOPE OF AUDIT

The financial year of Lietuvos Elektriné AB is the calendar year. The financial statements cover the
period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006 inclusive. The financial statements include comparative
data of 2 financial years (2005 and 2006). The financial statements of Lietuvos Elektriné AB comprise a
balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and explanatory note.

We have performed our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing drawn up and
approved by the International Federation of Accountants, our auditing practice and professional knowledge

of auditor as well as auditing procedures chosen at the auditor’s discretion.

. DESCRIPTION OF REASONS FOR AUDITOR’S REPORT MODIFICATIONS

Based on our audit, we have stated our unconditional opinion about the entity’s financial statements
2006 in our Independent Aunditor’s Report of 2 April 2007. We have also stated that we have not identified
any material inconsistencies between the Annual Report 2006 and the accompanying financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2006,

Aﬁ Accounting and audit company Audifas UAB



Audit Report on public company Lietuvos Elekiring financial statements 2006

IV.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

The accounting service of Lietuvos Elektriné AB is an independent structural unit (service) of the
entity led by Chief Financial Officer, During the period concerned, Rolandas Jankauskas was Chief Financial
Officer of Lietuvos Elektriné AB.

Accounts of the entity are kept according to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
accounting policies of the entity. Transactions and events are divided into separate account groups according
to the chart of accounts approved by the entity and prepared according to the provisions of IFRS and specific
nature of operations. Chief Financial Officer organises the work of the accounting service in such a way as to
ensure that transactions and events are recorded accurately and the correct amounts are entered in the
relevant accounts of the period concerned to facilitate preparation of financial statements according to the
existing legal acts.

Lietuvos Elekiriné AB financial statements 2006 were prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the EU and general accounting principles assuming that
the activities will be based on the going concern principle. This assumption means that the entity is going to
operate for unlimited duration and is not going to be liquidated. Our audit included an assessment if the
entity management properly used the going concern assumption. Having evaluated financial and other
factors affecting entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, we can conclade that the going concern
assumption is relevant.

The financial statements of Lietuvos Elektriné AB are intended to meet the needs of users who are
not in a position to demand reports tailored to meet their particular information needs. Financial statements
are a structured representation of the financial position and performance of the entity. The purpose of
financial statements is to provide information about the financial position of the entity, its financial
performance and cash flows that is useful to a wide range of users of these financial statements in making
economic¢ decisions. Financial statements also indicate how management handled the relevant resources. To

this end, Lietuvos Elektriné AB financial statements contain the foliowing information about the entity’s:

(a) assets;

(b) liabilities;

(¢)  equity;

(d) income and expenses, including gains and losses;

(e) other changes in equity; and
(3] cash flows.
This information, along with other information disclosed in the explanatory note, assists users of

financial staiements in predicting the entity’s future cash flows and, in particular, their timing and certainty.

A Accounting and audit company Auditas UAB
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The balance sheet presents information about the entity’s assets, liabilittes and equity. Current and
non-current assets as well as current and non-current liabilities of Lietuvos Elektriné AB are divided into
separate groups. Asset and liability items that combine amounts expected to be recovered or settled within
twelve months of the balance sheet day are deemed to be current assets or liabilities. Asset and liability items
that combine amounts expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve months after the balance sheet
day are deemed to be non-current assets or liabilities. An asset is classified as a current asset when it meets
any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected fo be realised in, or is held for sale or consumption in the normal course of the
entity’s operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for trading purposes;

(c)  itis expected to be realised within twelve months of the balance sheet date; or

{d) it is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in IAS 7 Cash Flow Statements), unless it is

restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet

date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The income statement presents information about the entity’s income and expenses, including gains
and fosses.

The statement of changes in equity presents information about the profit or loss for the period
concerned, each item of income and expense for the period that is recognised directly in equity, total income
and expense as well as the effects of changes in accounting policies and corrections of errors recognised in
accordance with IAS 8.

Information about cash flows is provided in the cash flow statement. Cash flows are divided into
cash flows from core activities, investment activities and financial activities. Effects of changes in exchange
rates on balances of cash and cash equivalents are presented separately.

In the explanatory note, the entity presents information about the basis of preparation of financial
statements and specific accounting policies used as well as information which must be disclosed under IFRS
and which is not presented in the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity or cash
flow statement. In the explanatory note, the entity also discloses further division of headings in items

presented in financial statements.

V. ASSESSMENT OF COMPLIANCE BETWEEN ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have read the Annual Report 2006 of Lietuvos Elektriné AB accompanying the audited financial
statements 2006, Management is responsible for the Annual Report and assumptions given in operational

plans and forecasts. Qur work with respect to the Annual Report was limited to checking it against annual
3
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financial statements and excluded any management estimates. operational plans and forecasts. We have also
reviewed if the Annual Report was prepared as required by the Republic of Lithuania Law on Corporate
Financial Statements. Based on our review, we can state that we have not identified any material
inconsistencies between the entity’s Annual Report 2006 and the accompanying financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2006. The Annual Report was prepared as required by the Republic of Lithuania

Law on Corporate Financial Statements in all material respects.
VI. INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for effectiveness of the internal control system and detection of errors
and fraud. Management’s ability to properly organise operations of the entity. design an internal control
system and help ensure its effectiveness minimises the risk of potential errors.

Internal control assessment is one of the factors affecting the scope of audit evidence to be collected
for the purpose of making an objective report on the customer’s financial statements. For audit purposes. the
control system was assessed to the extent than enabled us to judge if the existing system can serve as a
sufficient basis for preparation of financial statements.

The internal control system designed by the entity is sufficient as regards preparation of financial

statements. We have no material comments on the internal control system of the entity.

Accounting and audit company Auditas UAB
Alma Lizunova, Auditor (Auditor's Certificate No. 000152)

e

2 April 2007
Gedimino pr. 24-11
LT 01103, Vilnius
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